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Financial Highlights and Calendar

BEEE FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BRI N2 2% 2 A5 14.65518 7T Turnover increased by 2.2% to HK$1,465.5 million

EFMRE12.8% (ZZZN\F : 13.8%) Gross profit margin was 12.8% (2008: 13.8%)

2R RABEES 0008 T Profit for the year was HK$80.0 million
(ZZTN\F : E¥1.010187T) (2008: HK$101.0 million)

EFT R RERPRETA28.081l  The Board of Directors recommends a final dividend of HK28.0 cents
(ZZTNF : RERKR B FR29.081L (2008: a final dividend of HK29.0 cents and a special dividend
KERIIR B EAR12.081L) - 2FREAH of HK12.0 cents) per share. Total dividend for the year amounts

EM38.07(ZFZN\EF : 60.081(1) to HK38.0 cents (2008: HK60.0 cents) per share
BREARRBF A63.567%L Basic earnings per share were HK63.56 cents

(ZZZ)\5F : 79.02810) (2008: HK79.02 cents)

B A
Financial Calendar

RHAZEAE N —EEN\F+—HZ++tH
Interim results announcement 27 November 2008

R BAfR BOR A B B —EENF+ A -1+MWH
Paid date of the interim dividend 24 December 2008
EEEENMH “ZEThFLANB
Annual results announcement 9 July 2009

s R AR B T B S AR A
BEER

Closure of register of members for the proposed

—ETAFENAZTHBEE
—EENFNAZTEH
(BEEMABREEA)

24 August 2009 to 27 August 2009

final dividend (both days inclusive)
BRIREAFRE —EEAFENRZ+LR
Annual general meeting 27 August 2009
REAPR Bk 3 B HA —ETAFNANA

Payable date of the final dividend

4 September 2009
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the”Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2009.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$1,465.5 million, representing a modest increase of 2.2% over
the corresponding period of last year (2008: HK$1,433.5 million).
Gross profit margin was 12.8% (2008: 13.8%). Profit attributable
to equity shareholders was HK$80.0 million compared with
HK$101.0 million for the preceding year. Basic earnings per share
were HK63.56 cents compared with HK79.02 cents for the same
period of 2008.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK28.0 cents
(2008: a final dividend of HK29.0 cents and a special dividend
of HK12.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March 2009.
Together with the interim dividend of HK10.0 cents (2008: HK19.0
cents) per share paid during the year, the total dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2009 amounts to HK38.0 cents (2008: HK60.0
cents) per share, representing a total distribution of approximately
60% of the Group’s profit for the year. The proposed final dividend
will be paid on or before Friday, 4 September 2009 to shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company
at the close of business on Thursday, 27 August 2009.
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7.

BUSINESS REIVEW

Hong Kong

High rental charges and surging food costs were the major
challenges to the Group in the first half of the financial year.
Business environment had become even more challenging in the
second half of the financial year with the outbreak of the global
financial crisis. In view of the difficult business environment, the
Group's efforts over the year had been directed towards enhancing
brand recognition and building up reputation for quality products
and service offered to its customers. Among these initiatives was
the introduction of new elements in the interior design of our shops
which projected an image of the dynamic and fast-paced lifestyle
of Hong Kong people at large.

The Group’s latest marketing strategies, aimed at attracting
restaurant goers who are becoming more price conscious under
the weak market sentiments, had helped maintain customer traffic
and encouraged spending, but at the same time had put added
pressure on the gross profit margin.

During the year, decisive measures were taken to control expenses
and enhance operational efficiency. To combat rising food costs,
which only began to stabilize toward the end of the financial year,
the Group has adjusted its menu and sourcing mix as part of its
stringent cost control measures. Preparation works for setting up
the Group’s new central food processing plant at the Tai Po Industrial
Estate were progressing according to plan. The new plant, when
completed, is expected to further enhance the Group’s operational
efficiency and product offerings.

RREEEBRAT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mainland China

Turning to the Mainland operation, the Group achieved sales
growth of 23.2% for the reporting year through an enriched menu
that appealed to local tastes. Despite the encouraging increase
in sales, the Group maintained a cautious strategy for expansion
under the current economic conditions.

During the year under review, the Group opened 14 new fast food
outlets, specifically, 12 in Hong Kong and 2 in Mainland China. As
at 31 March 2009, the Group had a total of 98 outlets in operation
in Hong Kong, consisting of 94 fast food outlets, 2 Buddies Cafes
and 2 specialty restaurants. Our Mainland operation operated 13
fast food restaurants as at year end.




ERE®RE

Chairman'’s Statement

AR
EHREAERRAGHE-—REH EMG
BOHEGELE—F TR BEEER/R
BEDAFERE  REROKLBERFEL A
SITEAREEIRFEBEREIRD o A
HREEMRIBERS N - NEBTEEXRH R
EMBEREEAEIARE REOEEIL
£ o A BABERDHETERBORAR
ZHIHE M - MCIRA XM RRE - AN
BEYERNEREENE -

Emim BB HEIEZHAXE LR
RERBEENOK RAREBEREZIEH
BMERHFEANRRE  RITAEERE - It
S F AP A PR BT O T 55 1 R SR RS IR
SIXRFHEEMRBBE - AEERHF
REEMIFOBEARTEENFE=
FRE - RESGHRPIE S B IZEH K
Ao LEBREMERNKE - A RKE

BB -

PROSPECTS

Though the global economic downturn is likely to persist for some
time and consumer confidence will erode further, management
believes that opportunities are still present in the fast food industry.
The difficult economic conditions ahead will not blunt the Group’s
determination in fortifying its business foundation. We will step up
our efforts to create more growth drivers in order to strengthen our
retail operations and to identify possible investments that promote
long-term sustainable growth. At the same time, we will strive to
implement further stringent cost control measures and streamline
existing operations and structures to enhance operational efficiency
and profit margin.

On the product front, we will develop more innovative dishes to
cater for the tastes of our target customers. The Group will continue
to introduce the new interior design theme to more restaurants to
enhance dining experience. Moreover, we will explore innovative
marketing strategies to attract public interest and stimulate
consumption. The new central food processing plant opening
in third quarter 2009, as scheduled, is expected to contribute to
effective cost control particularly in a fluctuating market for raw
materials and to improve operating efficiency in the long run.

10

RPEEERRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



With food costs stabilizing and the rental market becoming less
competitive, we will be able to expand our restaurant operation to
encompass more prime locations. The Group is proceeding with its
plan to operate 100 fast food outlets in Hong Kong by 2010. In the
Mainland, we are optimistic about the long-term prospect of this
lucrative market and will continue with our expansion plan in a
prudent manner to further strengthen the Group’s presence
in the country.

APPRECIATION

Iwould like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
to my fellow Directors and all staff for their dedication
and hard work. Once again, | would like to thank
Mr Peter Lee Sheung Yam, who had retired on 28
August 2008, for his long and dedicated contribution
to the Company during his tenure of service as an
independent non-executive director. At the same time, |
welcome Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo, who joined the Company
on 11 November 2008 as an Independent Non-executive
Director. | am confident that the Company will benefit
from his invaluable financial expertise and experience. Last
BEERYMRATBIET - M EMEKHES  but not least, | would also like to offer my sincere appreciation to all
FHAEMN  BRMOAGURESHEAR customers, business partners and shareholders for their continuing
ZEHE  c AEBEERER-_ZT—ZTFF  support.

ERERBARI00RREEH B FHERE -

BARH RMUYEEEIOTEORE AEEFIH

AIRRTNEE  WKEEFIEEITIEITF By Order of the Board

2l - g AR E B AR A IS AL o
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Bl o LR RAEMREBEERSFEE

RZZFZNF+—A+—BHMAKRRARK

RBIUYFATESR > DTREARAKEE ERE

MRS EZ EEBEMBELE - %1% © Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

RAFEURESHMARTP  EBBHLKR #TEE

RS SRS E o Executive Chairman
&8 —TENFELANA
Hong Kong, 9 July 2009
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2009, the Group had total assets of HK$602.3
million (2008: HK$625.3 million). The Group’s working capital
was HK$52.2 million (2008: HK$16.6 million), represented
by total current assets of HK$248.9 million (2008: HK$248.7
million) against total current liabilities of HK$196.7 million (2008:
HK$232.1 million). The current ratio, being the proportion of total
current assets against total current liabilities, was 1.3 (2008: 1.1).
Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$374.9 million (2008: HK$370.0 million).

The Group continued to maintain a solid financial position. At
31 March 2009, the Group had net cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$181.1 million (2008: HK$178.1 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2009, the Group
had total bank loans of HK$6.0 million (2008: HK$3.4 million)
which was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi and
repayable within 5 years. The unutilized banking facilities were
HK$220.4 million (2008: HK$274.3 million). The gearing ratio of
the Group was 1.6% (2008: 0.9%), which was calculated based
on the total bank loans over total equity attributable to equity
shareholders.

The Group's receipts and expenditures base were mainly
denominated in HK dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the
fluctuation in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group’s financial
position.

Charges on Group's Assets

At 31 March 2009, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounting to HK$43.3 million (2008: HK$59.8 million).

12

RIREEBERDH
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



xiE

R-ZZETZHAF=A=+—8 A&£EEZE&
KA BBE1.288R T (ZTETN\F /B
K24087L) - EMERFTEZERBET —2
B 16618 LR IEAB IR B R KL EH A F
REBIMNTHOARKIRE 2 BB R
NERAAKEBRENERER RN _F
TNFEOANE  AEBEDHASREE
NAEF — MO pE A R L —BAL N K
TERENLIHRERY  BEXKE2HTP
REFIMITAL ©

BHAR

R-BENF=A=+—A  ARAVERE
T2 ANE R RO RIS ERRE MR
BB EE TR HER -

REER  EERAEBEBEERTHEAQA
WRENTEETK - REZER - A2
BRIBZERBBENSERNEKBAEN B
ARERBMEREESREBEI3 6108 T
T )N\F B3 19087T)  EF X
EREEEBHREE -

AR E LA IR R R T RTERA - R
REEAAREBEELASEMWITE  MARA
R HIEME -

EE®H

RIZZZNF=RA=+—0 XEEREE
K ElEE B ABLR/4300A (ZFF/)
F 1 4,520A) - REFMIIRETIEMEE
BENEBMETE - HFEhTE—RRERR
KEAM R KM & FiasT o

AEBEEERESERERNEE 2KH -
HEBERZEEBREARF N 2HFHER -
BIRERIEAL - WH - REESHFENE
FIERTHEER - st Rk ZFI LR
SIEHAGE -

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2009
were HK$128.8 million (2008: HK$2.4 million). The increase is
mainly due to an amount of HK$116.6 million to be invested in
setting up a new central food processing plant to replace the
existing one in operation to cope with the Group’s long term
business growth. On 6 April 2009, the Group signed an agreement
with Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation for
granting a site, with land and building, at Tai Po Industrial Estate
for setting up the new central food processing plant.

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2009, guarantees are given to banks by the Company
in respect of mortgage loans and other banking facilities extended
to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the balance sheet date, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Company under the
guarantee arrangement. The maximum liability of the Company at
the balance sheet date under the guarantee is the amount of the
facilities drawn down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by
the guarantee, being HK$36.1 million (2008: HK$31.9 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and
there is no transaction price.

Employee Information

At 31 March 2009, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 4,300 (2008: 4,520). Employees’ remuneration
is commensurate with their job nature, qualifications and
experience. Salaries and wages are normally reviewed annually
basing on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration
packages, share options and bonus to eligible staff, basing on the
performance of the Group and the individual employee. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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Executive Directors

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 57, is the Executive Chairman of
the Company. He graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course
on food and beverage management at New York University.
After the completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo
returned to Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company.
Mr Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He is a director of Neblett Investments Limited which
has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 55, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. He joined the Group in 1995. Mr Chan received
a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the University of
Manitoba, Canadain 1977 and a Master of Business Administration
Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau in 1987. He has
nearly 30 years' experience in marketing. Before joining the Group,
Mr Chan worked as a senior executive for a restaurant group
which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). He was appointed a Director of the Company
in January 1998 and was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the
Company on 1 January 2009. Mr Chan is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr Ng Chi Keung*, aged 60, is an Executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group in 1994. Mr Ng holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration and is an Associate Member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and an Associate Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 30 years' experience in finance
and management. Prior to joining the Company, he held senior
management positions with a number of well-known local and
overseas multinational companies. Mr Ng was appointed a Director
of the Company in November 1995. He is also the Secretary of the
Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai*, aged 68, joined the Company in 1991.
He has been practising as a certified public accountant in Hong
Kong for over 30 years and has extensive experience in auditing,
finance, taxation and administration. Mr Lau was a partner in
PricewaterhouseCoopers, Hong Kong until his retirement on 30 June
2001. He is also an independent non-executive director of each of
Kerry Properties Limited and Wheelock Properties Limited, both of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange and an independent director
of China World Trade Center Co., Ltd. (Beijing). Mr Lau is a Fellow
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales and a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin**, aged 61, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director in 1991. He has over 30 years' experience in
human resources development in public, commercial and educational
sectors. Mr Chan graduated from The University of Hong Kong, the
University of Strathclyde and The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a
Master of Business Administration Degree and a Master of Education
Degree. Mr Chan is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Human
Resources Management. He is currently Director of the Student
Development Services, City University of Hong Kong.

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen*, aged 56, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director in September 2000. Dr Lau had spent over
12 years in finance related work in the private and public sectors in
Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in 1987. Dr Lau holds a
Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and a MBA degree from the University of
Calgary in Canada. He is a member of The Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified Management
Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau is the Chairman and Chief
Executive of Giordano International Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd.,
both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo*, aged 44, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director in November 2008. Mr Tsoi graduated from
the University of Western Ontario, Canada with an Honours degree
in Business Administration in 1986. He is the Deputy Chairman
of the Listing Committees of the Main Board and the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr Tsoi is an executive
director and the chief executive officer of Varitronix International
Limited and is also a non-executive director of China Windpower
Group Limited, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

*  Member of the Audit Committee
#  Member of the Remuneration Committee

15



R
f the Directors

EXZgo A NERBE_TTNF=A=1—
BIEFENFRNEEZMBEHRREE

FEEXME
RKREEEERAR(ARA D EBARE:
A - FEM P E R &R A Canon's Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda -
MEZLEMBAZR BRI BT 2B 185
BREEEPL2E -

FTEEE

KA EEXBEERELER - SETEWE
NRINEZEBMEMFIFERIN T B RE
F12185123H °

ARABINEKTE DR (Gl ANEE )R AR
R R ) E B R MG L R o 85I R B
BMmAMEE12 -

FEERMAERS
BHE_ZZNF=ZA=+—RHIFE  £&%
B R AE P AR D B FTE H & R EEMR
BRBEARINAREZXBNREAREN
30% °

MEERE

AEEHE - TTANF=—A=+—HILFE
B3a AN A &) B AN SR B 7 5% B 89 B B
YN EIEE 123 BN IERERA ©

BARMEOBE
BEBRERBEREMNOROERE) B
#80,022,0007t( — T T N\ F: &
101,027,0007T) B ¥ A\ & - BN EME

BRI B RR 26

o

ARRBERZZEEN\F+-A=-+HHIKEHE
FEARRE FR10.08M(ZZZTN\F  19.08
i) BESRERREHE_TTNF=
A=Z+—B I FEMNREAKREZA28.0/81l

ZTE)\F  RER B BA%29.08 ML KA
BIRL B FA12.05810) -

The Board has pleasure in submitting their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2009.

Principal Place of Business

Fairwood Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is situated at Canon'’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and principal
place of business is situated at 2/F, TRP Commercial Centre, 18
Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in pages 121 to 123 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together with
the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30 per cent of the
Group’s total turnover and purchases respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 39 to 123.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$80,022,000 (2008: HK$101,027,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK10.0 cents (2008: HK19.0 cents) per share
was paid on 24 December 2008. The Board now recommends the
payment of a final dividend of HK28.0 cents per share (2008: a
final dividend of HK29.0 cents per share and a special dividend
of HK12.0 cents per share) in respect of the year ended 31 March
20009.
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Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$Nil (2008: HK$20,000).

Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements.

Share Capital

During the year, the Company purchased shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange. All the shares purchased were cancelled.
Shares were also issued during the year on exercise of share
options. Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Herald Lau Ling Fai
Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

(appointed on 11 November 2008)
Peter Lee Sheung Yam

(retired on 28 August 2008)
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with Bye-Law 100 of the Company, Mr Tony Tsoi
Tong Hoo, appointed during the year on 11 November 2008, will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Mr Tsoi, being eligible for re-election, will offer himself
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-Laws 109 and 189(viii) of the Company,
Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Herald Lau
Ling Fai will not offer himself for re-election whereas Dr Peter Lau
Kwok Kuen, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
As at 31 March 2009, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
in the issued share capital of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Company

BREEBKITINERR
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

HERT

IR 1748 %

BAERZ ZkEz AEzE HttlEs e BT

Percentage

of total

Personal Family Corporate Other issued

interests interests interests interests Total shares

ERE Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 3,451,105 - - 51,984,279 55,435,384 44.14%
(FfFEE1)
(Note 1)

PR 5 BK Chan Chee Shing 15,000 - - - 15,000 0.01%

RiEnR Ng Chi Keung 1,072,500 - - - 1,072,500 0.85%

FHEE1 : it % IR 9 & E3Neblett Investments Note 1:These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited

Limited ([Neblett]) #f & ' Neblett2
—HERBTEREBEERE RO
ERAMESEANAR - BRBEE
REERZETNRIE S RAE
& XNEBARRNRITER B
RAEHE B Neblett FTFA B0 B RS ©

("Neblett”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of which
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust as a discretionary
object and as the Executive Chairman of the Company, was
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Neblett.
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EERERITHRABRSEBED - BB Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests and Short

REEENESMRE(E) Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(continued)
(b) EARREREBRA RIS (b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited

BREEEFI10OTHERERELRG
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$10 each

BAERE RkEz LOFEzF HaER wE
Personal Family Corporate Other
interests interests interests interests Total
EFG Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - - 279,357 290,857
(M7%2)
(Note 2)

MiEE2 « 1t 55 AR 19 & HPengto International
Limited ([ Pengto|) ¥ - Pengtosz —
FABRRGEERRBEREERNE
AMERBEENAR - BRB LA
REMEAZEANRBREHROE
& XBRARBIMMITER - HU¥
R AVEHE B PengtofT 5 A IR {7 AUAEES -

bR ARSI RIR o

Bk Lt K N3 BE R AT &1 ] — &0 AT
BEI - BARBIRRE S GHI 35214
REBTNERMBT - HIRBIFEST
AIAE AR T A AR B KRB 3T AR
R_TETZNF=ZA=+—H KRFE
= SRITHASREMMPIF RS
Rt \BmB TR R BHERANRAR]
sk LTI HREE A (A1 & & R IR G FHXV
ERFTEIHYE S ) OB - ARRER D SIEHE
AR E AR TOR A ©

EENBMITHRABRBEALDRBERE
FHEIPTHR A MR R B EUN T X REARE

AHEl—ff o

Note 2:These shares were held by Pengto International Limited
("Pengto”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of which
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust as a discretionary
object and as the Executive Chairman of the Company, was
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Pengto.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2009, none
of the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age had
any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which had been entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests under the
Company’s Share Option Scheme are set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18 September
2002 under which the Directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-executive
Director and Independent non-executive Director) or any employee
of the Company or its subsidiaries or any consultant, agent,
representative, adviser, supplier of goods or services, customer,
contractor, business ally and joint venture partner to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price which shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the nominal value of the share; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; and (iii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the date of offer. As at 31 March 2009, the maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the share
option scheme is 12,660,828 shares being 10 per cent of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 23 August 2006, the date on
which the refreshment of the mandate limit under the share option
scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company. The
maximum entitlement for any one participant under the share
option scheme shall not in any 12 months period up to the date of
grant exceed one per cent of the shares in issue.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Directors and employees
of the Company had the following interests in options to subscribe
for shares of the Company (market value per share at 31 March
2009 was HK$6.10) granted for HK$1 consideration under the
share option scheme of the Company. The options are unlisted.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share of HK$1 each of the Company.
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ERkiERtEI(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)
R-EENE N-EENE BREf
mA-H ZB=t-A BRE  fEEN
KT ERENG FREEN EFAGEN  KOES RYEAN  SRiE
BhRE%A il fESE BREZR BRERE RREME BREME SRAEE SRUHE TOURE
Weighted
average
price of
Closing price ~ closing price
Number of Number of Number of Numberof ~ Number of pershare  per share
options options options options options immediately - immediately
outstanding lapsed  cancelled exercised outstanding Exercise  before date  before date
at 1 April Date Exercisable during  during  during at3'March  priceper  ofgrant  of exercise
2008 granted period  theyear  theyear  theyear 2009 share  of options  of options
(Hlit)
(Note)
R (8%) 400,000 “ERCE TRCTENETCA-R - (400000 - - BB AR -
Chan Chee Shing (Director) TZRZR EE-RET-A=TH HKS9.97  HKS9.72
3 December 2007 BEAIhGR
Exercisable in
five batches during
the period from
1 December 2008
to 30 November 2014
RE4 (2%) 400,000 “ERLE TNCTENETCA-R - (400,000 - - BRgIm  A¥INT -
Ng Chi Keung (Director) TZFZH E-Z-ME+-A=1H HKS9.97  HK$9.72
3 December 2007 BRAARAE
Exercisable in
five batches during
the period from
1 December 2008
t0 30 November 2014
8 21,000 “TRCE IRCTEME-A-HE (1000 - - - BT BT -
Employees “RtB ZERNErZA=T-H HKS1.00  HKS0.75
7 February 2003 BREAmhR
Exercisable in
four batches during
the period from
1 January 2004
to 31 December 2008
RREEBERAT
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N-BENE NoBENE BRER
mA-A ZR=t-A BRE  &HAN
AN ERdEN FRORN  KOEN BFREN  ShiE
BhE#A ol TEHE BRERE BREHE RBREHE SRORE SRUHE TOURE
Weighted
average
price of
Closing price ~ closing price
Number of Number of Number of  Number of pershare  per share
options options  options options immediately - immediately
outstanding cancelled  exercised  outstanding Exercise  before date  before date
at 1 April Date Exercisable during  during at31March  priceper  ofgrant  of exercise
2008 granted period theyear  the year 2009 share  of options  of options
Wit)
(Note)
& 300,000 “EINE TR-EEREAACTZR - (000000 100000 E¥235T AT EHE9T
Employee AA-B ECEEAENACTCA HKS2325  HKS235  HK$6.95
1 September 2004 BEA MR
Exercisable in
four batches during
the period from
23 September 2005
to 22 September 2009
8 360,000 “RRRE  JRCEENEATRE - - - EEINT AE3S0T -
Employee MA-+ER  E-E-ZERAT=H HK350  HKS3.50
25 Apri 2005 BRI ARAE
Exercisable in
five batches during
the period from
14 June 2006
t0 13 June 2013
8 3,300,000 ZERCE TRCEENETCA-B (230000 (3070,000) - - EMgTT EEIIT -
Employees tZAZR EZE-BET-A=1H HK9997  HKS9.72
3 December 2007 BRI ARAE
Exercisable in
five batches during
the period from
1 December 2008
t0 30 November 2014

M ERARRAR-_ZZLFET_A=HAM

NEERETRER THBBRENREE
(BRE®.97I) Y HE EFERE
RZZEZENFT A=+ —HFHLERER
YR -_ZENFHANAAZEES
KB BEMR THERSE fFEE -

Note: In view of the relatively high subscription price (HK$9.97 per share) of
the share options which the Company granted to two Directors and
certain employees of the Company on 3 December 2007, the Board
had decided to cancel these share options on 31 October 2008 and
re-granted the same number of share options to these Directors and
employees on 8 April 2009.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and
the weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(o)(ii)
and note 23 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.

Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the Company
As at 31 March 2009, the interests or short positions of every person,
other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, were as
follows:

HER /R HEBTRE
BEFENRG BEAEDL
Shares directly Percentage

and/or of total

indirectly held issued shares

(i) Neblett (Ffiz%) (Note)
(ii) SREIEERAT (M)
Jumbo Easy Limited (Note)

V) Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft
vi)  Allard Partners Ltd

i) Winning Spirit International Corp (FffzF) (Note)
iv)  HSBC International Trustee Limited (Ff{3X) (Note)

51,984,279 41.39%
51,984,279 41.39%
51,984,279 41.39%
51,984,279 41.39%
8,778,000 6.99%
8,692,000 6.92%
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Winning Spirit International Corp8l|2&— &
FIHSBC International Trustee Limited A%
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z ° HSBC International Trustee Limited{E
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B Eat T BEEN R ETENF=ZA=+
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Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the Company

(continued)

Note: These interests represented the same block of shares and were held
by Neblett. Neblett is a company wholly-owned by Winning Spirit
International Corp, which in turn is a company wholly-owned by
HSBC International Trustee Limited in the capacity of trustee. Jumbo
Easy Limited was deemed to be interested in these shares by virtue
of its capacity of a discretionary object of the trust which beneficially
owns Neblett and being a wholly-owned company of Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung. HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Neblett in the capacity of trustee of
the trust which beneficially owns Neblett.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31
March 2009.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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(a) EZFront Land Properties Limited ([ Front
Land ) BUHHE H&
IEMNBF SRR M EE30(d) ATaFit - KIRE
RZHB R A7 AFront LandfA A — I8 %
FR—EREE  HBRAE—F EA -

— T )N\F - fF—H#:t - Front Land
NRRESHEEARBERBGLIENER
BRPSCEMABEAL - KIRFERE
BRARBRZMEENNEE RIZEF

Continuing Connected Transactions

The particulars of the following continuing connected transactions
of the Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) Tenancy agreement with Front Land Properties Limited (“Front
Land”)
As detailed in note 30(d) to the financial statements, Fairwood
Fast Food Limited leased a property from Front Land for a term
of one year and six months commencing on 1 February 2008
for the operation of a fast food restaurant thereat. The ultimate
beneficial owners of Front Land are Mr Lo Hoi Chun, who is a
cousin of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, and his associate. Details
of the rent and deposits paid by Fairwood Fast Food Limited

(EFCHNE relating to the property are as follows:
—EENE —EENF
2009 2008
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEHES Rent for the year 1,966 1,966
MZA=Z+—HMHEHESE  Rental deposits at 31 March 491 491

(b) EFEBREERAT(#HENEER
¥
TFINBF R e 2= M EE30(b) P st - ARE
REBRARAMBERA—EYERR
—HREE - BHARNF BHZZTT=
FIHA+ AR - HELBPengtoR &
B EA - MPengtoll| 2 M — I8 LA 22
BrRERNEREHERNETERES

(b) Tenancy agreement with New Champion International Limited
(“"New Champion”)
As detailed in note 30(b) to the financial statements, Fairwood
Fast Food Limited leased a property from New Champion for
a term of six years commencing on 10 April 2003 for the
operation of a fast food restaurant thereat. New Champion
is wholly beneficially owned by Pengto, a company in turn
beneficially owned by a trust of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

AR W BRBEERTENE is a discretionary object. In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is

B RKREFREFRAAMZYEDH a director of New Champion. Details of rent and deposits paid

e MZSFBEAT by Fairwood Fast Food Limited relating to the property are as
follows:

—EENEF —EENF

2009 2008

BT T BB T

HK$'000 HK$'000

REEHES Rent for the year 1,247 1,247

RZA=+—HMHE%SE  Rental deposits at 31 March 330 330
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(b) Tenancy agreement with New Champion International Limited

("New Champion”) (continued)

In compliance with the conditional waivers granted to the
Company by the Stock Exchange from strict compliance with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules with respect to the continuing connected transaction
with New Champion and in compliance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in connection with the continuing connected
transaction with Front Land, the Independent Non-executive
Directors have reviewed and confirmed that both transactions
with Front Land and New Champion (the “Transactions”) are:

(i) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i) conducted either on normal commercial terms or on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole;

(iif) entered into in accordance with the terms of agreements
governing the Transactions or on terms no less favourable
than those available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transactions for the year ended
31 March 2009 did not exceed the respective maximum
aggregate annual value (“annual cap”) and the maximum
aggregate value (“cap”). (Note)

Note: The annual cap for the continuing connected transaction with
Front Land for the year ended 31 March 2009 is HK$ 1,965,600
while the cap for the continuing connected transaction with
New Champion is the lower of HK$10 million or 3 per cent of
the book value of the net tangible assets of the Group as at 31
March 2009.

The Directors have requested the auditors of the Company to
perform certain agreed-upon procedures on the continuing
connected transactions and have received a letter from the
auditors as required under Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

27




EEEHS

Report of the Directors

ESHAaniG
SRIFHERER 5 | —Ei TR Z 90 - i
REARBR T AREREFR QB A
& ERAURNEEN—AITYE o KIRVER
BEARARRALTES NN AIEER M
BEFHBOT

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, New Champion has also
agreed to grant a licence to Fairwood Fast Food Limited to use a
storeroom in Hong Kong during the year. Details of the licence fee
and deposits paid by Fairwood Fast Food Limited relating to the
storeroom are as follows:

—sBnE —TTNF

2009 2008

BT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

REFEFAEER Licence fee for the year 180 180
R=A=+—HBrE: Deposits at 31 March 30 30
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Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

During the year, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung had a service contract
with the Company which may be terminated by either party to the
contract on three months’ notice.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Save as set out in note 26(c)(ii) to the financial statements, there
were no other purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year. Shares were repurchased during the year to reduce the
dilutive effect of granting share options.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws and the law in Bermuda.

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group at 31 March 2009 are set out
in note 21 to the financial statements.
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By Order of the Board

‘S
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
BITESE

Executive Chairman

B —TZNFLANB
Hong Kong, 9 July 2009

Five Year Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 124 and
125 of the annual report.

Investment Properties
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown on
page 126 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars of the MPF Scheme
are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Auditors
KPMG retire and, beingeligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.
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The Board is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance practices to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year
ended 31 March 2009 except for certain deviations, details of which
and the reasons for the deviations are stated below.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules for securities transactions by Directors of the
Company. Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors
of the Company have confirmed their compliance with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2009.

Board of Directors

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors have taken decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control,
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material matters
of the Company. With the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner. Directors
may choose to take independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon making request
to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises the three Executive Directors and the senior management
of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above-
mentioned officers.
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Board of Directors (continued)
As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors:
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)

(re-designated as Executive Chairman on 1 January 2009)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 1 January 2009)
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Herald Lau Ling Fai
Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo
(appointed on 11 November 2008)

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors with at least
one independent non-executive director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Biographical details of the Directors of the
Company and the relevant relationships among them, if any, are set
out on pages 14 and 15 of this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in writing of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2009 and attendance record of individual Directors is set
out below:

HERE EBRE
No. of meetings attended/held

BITEE

BB (HITEE)
SRR (TTIECABEL)
RE5R

BYFHATEE

G300

REESF

2R

HERZ:
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FHE
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AEQRRRNEML  ERARNFERSE LT
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AEERAARMRRASENTBOAAAEER
£ ARFZBE 2 RERBERALL A
NEII B HRER 2 BERSINEITRFEIBEZ
BUZBMREEAN - KEENER  TE
EMALEBRTAREMHLIBERAATEEE
ERDNAFHELZENEES o

FERERESR
AREMERAATERANDETESES
BOAZEENALTHEARRRES - NIEA
R ERIERESSHINIEKE - #R
ARRILEALIREZES - ERBUEERE
o 2REEENEHELEBEREAM
BEENER K& BELATRABITRE
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Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Ng Chi Keung 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors
Herald Lau Ling Fai 4/4
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 4/4
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

(appointed on 11 November 2008) 3/3
Peter Lee Sheung Yam

(retired on 28 August 2008) 11

All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The statement of the auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Company is set out on pages 37 and 38 in the independent
auditor’s report. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
confirm that there are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is empowered under the Bye-Laws of the Company (the
“Bye-Laws") to appoint any person as a Director of the Company
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Though
the Company has not set up a nomination committee, the Board
as a whole will carry out the selection process by making reference
to the qualifications, experience, integrity and time commitment of
the proposed candidates.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors (continued)
According to the Bye-Laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual general
meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors (other than any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) for the time being or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office provided that each Director
(other than any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director) including those appointed for a specific term shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are appointed for a specific term of three years, subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by the shareholders in accordance with
the Bye-Laws.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

To ensure compliance with this code provision, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
Yeung had relinquished his role as Chief Executive but remained as
the Executive Chairman of the Company whereas Mr Chan Chee
Shing was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company
with effect from 1 January 2009. Following the re-designation and
appointment, the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are now separate and performed by different
individuals.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (continued)

Under the Bye-Laws, the Chairman and the Managing Director
of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation. The
Board considers that the exemption of both the Chairman and the
Managing Director (Chief Executive Officer) of the Company from
such retirement by rotation provisions would provide the Group
with strong and consistent leadership, efficiency usage of resources
and enables effective planning, formulation and implementation
of long-term strategies and business plans. The Board believes that
it would be in the best interest of the Company for such Directors
to continue to be exempted from the retirement by rotation
provisions.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference which are in line with the CG Code and
are posted on the Company’s website and available to shareholders
upon request. The Remuneration Committee comprises two
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin
and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and one Executive Director, Mr
Ng Chi Keung. Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
determining the remuneration packages of the Directors and other
related matters. During the year, the Remuneration Committee met
once to review the remuneration policy of the Group.

The attendance record of individual members is as follows:

HERE SBRE
No. of meetings attended/held

BUIBITESE Independent Non-executive Directors

BRERF* Joseph Chan Kai Nin* 1”1
2IEE Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11
BITESE Executive Director

R Ng Chi Keung 11

* Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Mr
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo (appointed on 11 November 2008). The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai and meets at least
twice a year.
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Audit Committee (continued)

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant
or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal
auditor or external auditors before submission to the Board for
approval. It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature
of the external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s financial reporting system, internal control system and
risk management system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has adopted written terms of reference which are in
line with the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website
and available to shareholders upon request.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of external
auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their independence
and the nature and scope of the audit; to review the internal
audit programme, findings and management’s responses; and to
evaluate the system of internal controls and risk management of
the Group.

The attendance record of individual members is as follows:

HERE EBRE
No. of meetings attended/held
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* Chairman of the Audit Committee

BERZEETE

Peter Lee Sheung Yam

Independent Non-executive Directors
Herald Lau Ling Fai*

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

2/2
2/2
11
(appointed on 11 November 2008)

171
(retired on 28 August 2008)
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Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the fees paid/payable to the
auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
auditors of the Company were as follows:

PR E -]
Nature of services Amount
BT TT
(HK$'000)
—EENE CEENERHEEEEE Review fee for 2008/09 interim results 438
R )N\F S CETNEFRFEEERE Audit fee for 2008/09 final results 2,164
BRERENBE RREHIEEZRG Non-audit services which covered provision of
tax compliance services 335
FEEE] Total 2,937
PIEBES 12 Internal Controls

ESCTRRSEARAREREMARNA
FRESIRHIE - AEREM N EE S E B 1 E
EMEVERARE - Y REREBREEET
MERERER - REEETSEREHFANIER
THENRSIE - ARG R MG A
ZERT - AERHEA ENTHERFERE
B TR - WhERE ST BRAR KRG -
EEe e iR ARE AT HIE A
2 e

BERENRERRE

AR EHEETRIR R M (e B A & R R
Kol - HEMPITEENSEEEARR
ATHERBREERONBRTER - &
BETHARANBRIILN - EFFTEL
BERMFEARENEEROER - WEE
BREHFRRAS  BERMNESSXNEEE
REWREMINER -

ARBREPUIERIRERREBRNRE -
AEF T ER B R R EM R E MM &
I BT EEERY

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group's internal
control system includes a well defined management structure with
limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensure maintenance of proper books and records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or publication, and
to ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The
Board conducts regular reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations communications. Designated executive directors
and senior management maintain regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. The Board also welcomes the views
of shareholders on matters affecting the Group and encourages
them to attend shareholders’ meetings to communicate any
concerns they might have with the Board or management directly.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Fairwood Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 39 to 123, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31 March 2009, the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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AR
Consolidated Income Statement

HE-SBAF=A=t-
For the year ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BIEFECABEHIR)

—EENF T N\F
. 2009 2008
st Fr T
Note $'000 $'000
R Turnover 3&12 1,465,503 1,433,476
iz IO Cost of sales (1,277,361) (1,235,936)
EF Gross profit 188,142 197,540
H A Other revenue 4 3,202 15,703
HMAT1S 55 Other net income 4 7,478 1,255
HEEM Selling expenses (26,351) (27,195)
THER Administrative expenses (72,147) (70,218)
BFEERERB&FSE  Netimpairment losses on fixed assets 13(d) (4,142) (1,968)
KEYEMLE Valuation (losses)/gains on investment
(B18), Wz properties 13(b) (1,370) 6,052
&R Profit from operations 94,812 121,169
BhE KA Finance costs 5(a) (199) (1,361)
BR B AT R A Profit before taxation 5 94,613 119,808
Frig it Income tax 6(a) (14,591) (18,781)
AT ERRREMRER  Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 26(a) 80,022 101,027
rEERE : Dividends attributable to the year: 10
FABE IR & Interim dividend declared and paid
B HARR during the year 12,549 24,246
HEERREEZEDIK Final dividend proposed after the
B R AR B balance sheet date 35,164 36,861
HEEREREZRDIK Special dividend proposed after
oS dalllibesh the balance sheet date = 15,253
47,713 76,360
BRER Earnings per share 11
HA Basic 63.561lcents  79.021llicents
e Diluted 63.47flicents  78.52{llicents

FAEFI23EMM B AN B REK A —

statements.

The notes on pages 46 to 123 form part of these financial
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Consohdated Balance Sheet
RIZEBAF=A=+—BAEBIITR)
At 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EBEENE —ET)\F
) 2009 2008
[(NE=a T Tt
Note $'000 $'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
BEEEE Fixed assets 13(a)
—KREME — Investment properties 41,135 45,374
—EH M - — Other property, 266,463 261,578
S FIRR plant and equipment
307,598 306,952
ElF & EMTEN R Prepayment for fixed assets 3,683 -
BES Goodwill 14 1,001 1,001
BEffHe%Ee Rental deposits paid 38,742 29,261
EemEE Other financial assets 16 2,341 39,345
RETRIEE E Deferred tax assets 24(b) 35 25
353,400 376,584
REEE Current assets
e Inventories 17(a) 29,232 28,414
JFE Uit B R L th B ik Trade and other receivables 18 36,359 41,933
A UL B A ERFR 30 Current tax recoverable 24(a) 2,239 294
HeMRLEED Cash and cash equivalents 19 181,098 178,052
248,928 248,693
REEaE Current liabilities
JE {~F BR 2R EL A JE 5 50 Trade and other payables 20 190,375 219,758
RITERHBNERE > Current portion of bank loans 21 350 3,000
FEHKHH%RIE Current tax payable 24(a) 552 4,612
R Provisions 25 5,489 4,691
196,766 232,061
REBEEFE Net current assets 52,162 16,632
EEABRRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 405,562 393,216

RESEAR AR
40 FAIR bl
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—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
FEE T T
Note $’000 $'000
RBEME Non-current liabilities
SRITER Bank loans 21 5,670 350
BREHREEE Deferred tax liabilities 24(b) 2,962 1,079
B EES Rental deposits received 675 1,338
i Provisions 25 21,365 20,496
30,672 23,263
BEEFRE Net assets 374,890 369,953
BN Capital and reserves 26(a)
[ Share capital 125,587 127,106
& Reserves 249,303 242,847
AATEERR Total equity attributable to equity
Bl ERARE shareholders of the Company 374,890 369,953

BEEeRN_ZTZT
B -

FAEFI23EMM B AN B REK A —

9 July 20009.
‘S
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
#ITEE

Executive Chairman

statements.

R

Ng Chi Keung

HITEF

Executive Director

NE+AAB#%EXFA  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

The notes on pages 46 to 123 form part of these financial
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BEAEX

Balance Sheet
RZTBEBEAF=A=1+—BUAE
At 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

oIR)

2THE  —TTNF
) 2009 2008
(S22 Tt I
Note $'000 $'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
R A FRIRE Investments in subsidiaries 15 354,317 349,745
REEE Current assets
JEUBRFURE thEYLFX  Trade and other receivables 18 35,707 88,350
ReMRSEED Cash and cash equivalents 19 158 112
35,865 88,462
REEaE Current liabilities
JETBRFANEABERZX Trade and other payables 20 29,209 29,266
RBEEEE Net current assets 6,656 59,196
EEFE Net assets 360,973 408,941
EXRNGHE Capital and reserves 26(b)
&N Share capital 125,587 127,106
EE Reserves 235,386 281,835
AL Total equity 360,973 408,941
BZeRN - ETAF+ AN B ENZA  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
B o 9 July 2009.
EHE REA
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Ng Chi Keung
HITFE HITEFE

FA6E FI123EMN B AT BHREN —

B e

Executive Chairman

Executive Director

The notes on pages 46 to 123 form part of these financial
statements.

RESEAR AR
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FEEREBR : :
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE-TTNFZ A=+ BUIEEONERTIT)
For the year ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

“BENE ZTTN\E
) 2009 2008
U3 Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
REA—-RMESAE Total equity at 1 April 369,953 333,832
ERnRARINTEIE Net income recognised directly
in equity: 26(a)
BEHBERBARMBEREMES Exchange differences on translation
MERER of financial statements
of PRC subsidiaries 836 1,410
REEERRMEBARENER Revaluation gain recognised upon
RE B transfer from property held for
own use to investment property 241 -
ERER Transfers from equity:
A Bl —F B N A Release of exchange reserve upon
FRIREE H A dissolution of a PRC subsidiary - 1,351
FEFEA Net profit for the year 80,022 101,027
ANERERBRREN Total recognised income and
FECRAKXARE expense for the year
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 81,099 103,788
TEERRENRE Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 10(b), 26(@) ~ (51,670) (30,758)
FEABERMKRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 10(a), 26(@)  (12,549) (24,246)
....... (64,219) (55,004)
BARGFEENERSZE Movements in equity arising
from capital transactions: 26(a)
REBRAET 2 BTNRD Shares issued under share
option scheme 465 2,489
BITER Issue expenses (8) Qn
NEREBN RGN A Equity-settled share-based
AWM 5 transactions 1,888 1,047
El:-7 N80 Repurchase of own shares
—-BNAE — par value paid (1,719) (1,720)
-BEERELER — premium and brokerage
expenses paid (12,569) (14,458)
______________________ (11,943) (12,663)
REA=+-HMEREE Total equity at 31 March 374,890 369,953

FL6E FI123EMN B AT BHREN —

B e

The notes on pages 46 to 123 form part of these financial
statements.
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SARSTER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HE_ZZNF=A=1-HIFRE(LAEBIIT)

For the year ended 31 March 2009 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

“EENE “TEN\F
2009 2008
Birsx Fr Tr T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
geEy Operating activities
ERBATE Profit before taxation 94,613 119,808
FRIER - Adjustments for:
-EEEERE — Depreciation of fixed assets 49,324 45823
-ETEERERBLTFE — Net impairment losses on fixed assets 4,142 1,968
— AP E—F B AR ~ Release of exchange reserve upon
FRIREE K (e dissolution of a PRC subsidiary = 1,351
— DR BE ABRE — Change in fair value of other financial
Hir e MEEN AR assets at fair value through
BEZY profit or loss 78 1,094
—HMSEM ~ Interest expenses 121 267
—FIEHA ~ Interest income (3,202) (6,992)
—REFEENBAR ~ Write back of loans from minority
2 VERR shareholders of non-wholly owned
MEX subsidiaries = 8,711)
-RERTEEBETE — Net loss on disposal of fixed assets 6,076 2,524
—-REWMERE — Valuation losses/(gains) on investment
BB/ () properties 1,370 (6,052)
—NEREZHARND B ~ Equity-settled share-based
AR5 transactions 1,888 1,047
EELSRBANKE RN Operating profit before changes
in working capital 154,410 152,127
e Increase in inventories (818) (10,391)
BRAASELEN Increase in rental deposits paid (5,107) (5,077)
PR AN ELth MO Decrease in trade and other receivables 1,193 38
FERBR SR E MR 3K (Increase)/decrease in trade
(), m and other payables (17,034) 26,510
BHHSRERD Decrease in rental deposits received (1,481) (862)
RERBE Increase in provision for long
HEfBIEm service payments 790 1,568
MEBFBERA Decrease in provision for
EERD reinstatement costs for rented premises (1,000) (557)
CEEBELENRS Cash generated from operations 130,953 163,356
EHFIE Interest received 3,209 6,982
BRHE Interest paid (136) (282)
ERHE Tax paid
—BENEBTIGEH ~ Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (18,996) (17,827)
—REBBFGH — Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 286 190
—BERHERE — PRC tax paid = 48)
REEHMBNRE Net cash generated from operating
FELE activities carried forward 115,316 152,371

44 KIFEEEERAA
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“BENE ZTTN\F
2009 2008
Pzt T T T T
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

REEEERHEH Net cash generated from operating

BeFE activities brought forward 115,316 152,371
REED Investing activities
REBEEENRE Investment in structured notes (17,957) -
EEEZEEH Maturity of structured notes 54,883 58,960
BAETEENR Payment for purchase of fixed assets (74,072) (77,579)
HEETBEMBHBETE Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 61 23
RETBFANALSFE Net cash used in investing activities (37,085) (18,596)
MEEE Financing activities
RIFERE B TRG Proceeds from shares issued

FriSsE under share option scheme 465 2,489
BT FREE R Expenses incurred in connection

T with the issue of shares ®) 21)
B G Payment for repurchase of shares (14,288) (16,178)
ERRE Dividends paid (64,219) (55,004)
BRIRITER Repayment of bank loans (3,000) (3,000)
BATERTER Drawdown of PRC bank loans 5,670 -
REEBFANRSFE Net cash used in financing activities (75,380) (71,714)
ReNRLSENEMTFER Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,851 62,061
REUA—BNBEHNRLEEY Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 178,052 115,197
NEEXSBNTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 195 794
R=ZA=+—-BHBEENEESEY Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 19 181,098 178,052

.

7 e

46E FI123EM MM EEB AP EIRER N —

statements.

The notes on pages 46 to 123 form part of these financial
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(B =B RS -

ABEIIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless.otherwise indicated)

FREHE

BREH

AR BEHmRERRE B AGRM
EVFTE E R ECE B IS ER) (LA
WEEMEERNEIKE B BERELE
A (BAEEFERDNZE) FERQ
R RAMEFBCR FHED DA IR AR
EMRE - AMEMARRRTABERNKE
BMERZMERRRES LHARRDEK
BARE - ATEAKERANEESR
BURBLE °

(b) FTSMAR R ARBLELE

BE_ZTNAF=-A=1T—HILFEHXN
RAMBRTBEARRMEHE R A
(Gt A&E]) -

BUTEERBERRAABEMNE
(R TXH#ENEABR)I - REAT
BMARERIARE LR AVE R EAR

— REWMEZHMEN) &

— BIBRURAEBEFABRSNERE
ENERTAZREME1E)N))

EEEFTERENTA(EEMBREE
A H) B TS 3R B VE & B @ AT R Y
FEM - ARHBEE  BE - WA
B 5 ¥R & BER R E R AT - R AR
R o E LR AR R R IR AR
BMEEERNEERBARSAENE
HEMARMELDN  E&ERBRAT
EEEEEANEMEETRMEESR
B B A IR B (BB PR ) B 0 R o
ERGERA BRI 25

1
(a)

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2009 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets and liabilities are stated as their fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(f)); and

— financial instruments classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (see note 1(e)(i)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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1
(b)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the
next year are discussed in note 32.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1())).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 1(j)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d) Goodwill (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Structured notes

The Group’s other financial assets represent structured notes
which are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss or loans and receivables. Purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the trade date.

(i) Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Structured notes in this category include notes with embedded
derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows resulting
from these financial instruments. These structured notes are
designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception and
are recognised initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date,
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Loans and receivables

Structured notes in this category include notes which are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts (see note 1(j)).

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 1(r)ii).
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1
(f)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied for other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 1(h).

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1())):

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the
land and buildings cannot be measured separately at the
inception of the lease and the building is not clearly held
under an operating lease; and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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1
(9)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings -
situated thereon
Leasehold improvements

30 - 50 years

the remaining term of the
tenancy leases

the remaining term of the
tenancy leases

10% — 20% per annum

15% per annum

25% per annum

10% per annum

Air-conditioning plant -

Furniture and equipment -
Motor vehicles -
Computer system -
Others -

No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery and
utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent replacements
are charged to profit or loss in the year when the expenditure
is incurred.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.
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(i)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Company are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see
note 1(f)); and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of other assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(j)), except where

the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties

without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at

cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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1 EEFHBEEZ) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
() BEERE () Impairment of assets
() A2 S5 AR BR B FE M BR 5L I EL At fE (i) Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
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financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets
carried at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment of trade and other
receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised
cost is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

52 RREEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



FEERIBE(E)

BEEREE)

(i) LABRIERE AN SR 0 JE SR S FI B
Yok LA 2 B A A 6L 1 ()
BEBRXSERPHERNEE - &
A LA RT A U BR SRR L At FE M SR A B

AR R ERARERAME - Halk
[ 14w 8 AR &t - BAE R REIEARIE
AR - HERIERT - RERERE
KEHRAEBRRLS - EXKER
AU B B FT BE MR RS - AR RN AT
W Bl 7 R E & E R iH R UAR X
HIZEIAA M EBRARE T
A FEL ZE O - HEWDEFaEtA
ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ ° i%ﬁ

ﬁﬁﬁ’]%(%ﬁfjﬁ%a f PR ©
(i) B A& ERRE
AEEESESE B FERHARMINE

BWES - MBEEATEERT HEUR

BERR  RATERAREEKX

(Eﬁ?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ BlIBRSN) BB EFERK
Z«(/ﬁz/J\ :

- PE - HESEIRE

- RHEBARNKRE &

- s
MREBEMEETR - BEHEAE
EMAWEIEEE - I BEEM

5 IwELFEEMRETRE
£ AREbCESFEFEIKRES
B e

1

ey

j)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)

0]

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)
Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

investments in subsidiaries; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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1 EEEHEREKE) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
() BEERMEGE) () Impairment of assets (continued)
(//) B EERRE(E) (i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

AAERWEEER

BENTRES RS E ER
PRREMEROESE - £5F
I AEER - RRBL R
ERRBERREE TS
B R EA A A e AR M T4
BBATTRE - TR RRE -
MR AEFE LR S RARA
E IR A E A
ReRA - AALEEBIRS
RAMSNEERR(DRSE
BT ) AR AT RIS 4R o

ERYEREREES

EERENMBREELETHR
EE RSN E AW E S FEE R

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
netselling price and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the

BELXFEEEEaTER 9 cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
Eiﬁb%?tlj“_ﬁﬁw ﬁfﬁiﬁﬂi recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
B gt rsiie2zieE respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
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MRRE SR - AR PR %
B (SZAET) REMEEN
EHeR BEENREETS
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reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

LEAEIEREEEES —  Reversals of impairment losses
HEBLIINEEMS - NRA In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment

VATETE AT I [ & BR O (A ST B
RIEm&E(L - BREMEERLX
BeEmn  BERENRERLXT
SED -

FrEmeyRERRAENESEE
RAEEREMRERRNERLT
MEENEERTDSERR < 7

loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighed average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the year in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the year the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and
fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 1(g)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost except where the payables are interest-
free loans from related parties without any fixed repayments
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(0) Employee benefits

0]

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when,
the Group demonstrably commits itself to terminate
employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal plan which is
without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

RREEEHRAF
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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1 EEFHBEEZ) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p) FTISTL (&) (p) Income tax (continued)
BETUERARERIBEEEHEEER The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
@ EE A U TNAENTIMNE R liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
TNAIERE A EESHBENEE T not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
ZestERAENEEXREENVIR or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
HR(INBLEAGR—3BDRIRRIN) LA (provided they are not part of a business combination), and
EARBATIHEE(INBRERER - B temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
RAAAREE R AR HIEE B AR - mE the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
E 0] T8 5L 89 % 2R S K AT BB 83 (2] 1) B B 1 controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
ZE mBEREMNER - B RBEHR differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
AR RO ER) © case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.

ERRECHERLBEERAERA The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
SEMEMTRNAEE SN BRIEDH the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
THEEEBEE FEHITHR XS amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
S EEREEEHABEH AR substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
"o assets and liabilities are not discounted.
AEESTGEAEHBEHEEHIEE The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
ENRESRE MRAEEEHRITFA] balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
BEENS B S0 FE R A LUK N AR B Y B longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
BH&E ZEEHRBEEENRESEE allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
gL BRNMREAKBEAIEREEH is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
RERAE AR > eEESED o taxable profit will be available.

EHMEERIEASR LA EE SR Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
FIR - AT o 8 BFAELTHIE therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
BEIRSERDAKANEBGELETE offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
HAESHEEERESHHEaE and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
B FFE A TSRS T - A\l Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
A7 B EE 2 HAFEE R IB B (E - set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

- BHREEEHEBE : AARHASE - inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
B2 R AEMAEYE o iRIGE or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
WMZEEMBEZAE X realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- BEMBEEERAGR: GLEENRA - in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
BN AR — SR M A T A — to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
TERWHI PRSI AR - either:

— FE—EHRERE = - the same taxable entity; or
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(p) Income tax (continued)

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(9) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specific payments to reimburse
the beneficiary to the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specific debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group or Company issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(qg)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently carried in trade
and other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(g) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(r) Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

(i)

(ii)

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to customers.
Revenue is after deduction of any sale discounts.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate new lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Interestincome is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in the income statement on an

accrual basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries which
operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while that for
subsidiaries which operate in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC") is Renminbi. The presentation currency of the
Group is Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Balance sheet items, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of operations outside Hong Kong acquired on or after 1 January
2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in equity which
relate to that operation is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(u) Related parties

(V)

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly and indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i)
or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for the
benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that is
related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services with a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of
other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the
Group has chosen business segment information as the primary
reporting format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these financial
statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(v) Segment reporting (continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
For example, segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment. Segment
revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated
as part of the consolidated process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are between Group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based
on similar terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the
year to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible)
that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans and corporate and financing
expenses.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new Interpretations and
an amendment to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period to the Group and the Company. However,
none of these developments is relevant to the Group’s
operations.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(see note 33).
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3 EE. 3 Turnover
AEBMNEEXEBELEIREEEBK The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast food
MERE - restaurants and property investments.
BEEAETHETRE MRS E Turnover represents the sales value of food and beverages sold
BEMBSEA - EXEODIHAOT - to customers and rental income. An analysis of turnover is as
follows:
—EENF —EEN\F
2009 2008
Fr Tt
$000 $'000
BmEkRmigE Sale of food and beverages 1,456,683 1,419,791
LE kA Property rental 8,820 13,685
1,465,503 1,433,476
4 HfgARFESHE 4 Other Revenue and Net Income
—EENE —EENF
2009 2008
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
HUA Other revenue
FLEUA Interest income 3,202 6,992
BRI EMBARIZ Write back of loans from minority
DEIREE K shareholders of non-wholly
owned subsidiaries - 8,711
3,202 15,703
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4 Other Revenue and Net Income (continued)

—EEThE —TTNF
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $'000
HAhFri5 558 Other net income
REEIERERMBER R FE Compensation received on early
termination of lease 7,000 —
REETEEBETRE Net loss on disposal of fixed assets
—ERERIFAEER — from early termination of lease (2,661) -
—EHBEKBREF — in the normal course of business (3,415) (2,524)
BTE=FEENEA Compensation received on granting right
—MEBETIRE of access to a third party for
i YCER B 6 (5 construction work to be performed
in part of a restaurant 2,135 -
BERRBEESR Electric and gas range incentives 1,948 1,661
HEREE R Profit on sale of redemption gifts 867 1,026
PR B B — SR P B 8 R Release of exchange reserve upon
R BREE W R dissolution of a PRC subsidiary —~ (1,351)
BREXBERE Management fee from canteen operation - 658
Hit Others 1,604 1,785
7,478 1,255
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless-otherwise indicated)

5 FRIRAEF
BB ADEFENGR,(GEA):

5 Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

—EEAF —TENE
2009 2008
Fr Fr
$'000 $'000
@ BB : (a) Finance costs:
AR BEt AR Change in fair value of other
MEBEMEE financial assets at fair value
HAREBEEZE through profit or loss 78 1,094
ARAFAZHEEN Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
RITERF S within five years 121 267
199 1,361
(b) BIRAK: (b) Staff costs:
REHFRARFTEIHR Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 16,750 15,404
DAt i EH) AR B Equity-settled share-based payment
EER T expenses 1,888 1,047
e ITEREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 376,802 377,010
395,440 393,461
(0  HmIAR : (c) Other items:
FEKA(GE) Cost of inventories (Note) 425,275 413,493
BTEERE Depreciation of fixed assets 49,324 45,823
ZEETEN S Auditor’s remuneration 2,602 2,750
MENREHEER Operating lease charges on properties
- REHENE — Minimum lease payments 200,294 183,328
—BEHe - Contingent rentals 17,845 19,238
Y & Rental receivable
—REMFEREESH ~ Investment properties, less direct
287,0007T outgoings of $287,000 (3,719) (3,699)
(ZEENF: (2008: $287,000)
287,0007T)
—HibHIBEEHE — Other operating sub-leases (4,814) (9,699)
HigBHMIXEAR Cost of subsequent replacement of cutlery
FHMHER and utensils 7,074 7,699

Note: This represents food costs.
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BaRATRATIAS

(a) #7

6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

—ZEEThE ZEENF
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $'000
AHEBIE - BB FEH Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
RFEAEMG Provision for the year 13,423 17,030
A FEEGBE), /TR (Over)/under-provision in respect of
prior years (513) 139
12,910 17,169
REABLIE — Current tax — PRC
RNEFHERE Provision for the year — 155
AT E 2R T Over-provision in respect of prior years (192) (55)
(192) 100
EEH IR Deferred tax
EREZEENESNED Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 1,873 1,486
MEZEHTE Effect of change in tax rate - 26
1,873 1,512
14,591 18,781

E-ZTTN\F_A - BEEBRBEMEE
E-TTAF=F=+—HILFERL"
HRARASENEBSEBNANEHER
17.5% N #2£16.5% > NEE K AR A
ERE_FTNFENTBRERFT B
ZERIBMETHANEZ - At —FF
NFERNEAENSREFBIZAFEN
(At ETRLHEFIA16.5% (Z2E

17.5% )T RAH -

JAN: = the estimated assessable profits for the year.

In February 2008, the Hong Kong Government announced
a decrease in the Profits Tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%
applicable to the Group’s operations in Hong Kong as from the
year ended 31 March 2009. This decrease is taken into account
in the preparation of the Group’s and the Company’s 2009
financial statements. Accordingly, the provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for 2009 is calculated at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of
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6 RERSFXMTHRERE) 6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

(b) AIEM X KM EFHEAMZBER R KT E

HY¥TAR - applicable tax rates:
—ZEThEF ZZTTNF
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $'000

B E AT A Profit before taxation 94,613 119,808
EREAARE AT ERR Notional tax on profit before taxation,

BSRNOBERNETE calculated at the rate applicable

R AT M 8 2 E A IE to profits in the tax jurisdictions

concerned 15,611 21,134

AR B IE & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,220 354

BAHRANTRBETE Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,786) (3,775)
REE AR AHEH Tax effect of current year’s tax losses

BENTIEYE not recognised 191 563
REERH E A B = 2 Tax effect of other temporary differences

WA E not recognised 89 213
MEGFeHTE Effect of change in tax rate — 26
ALREIFEBFEN Hong Kong Profits Tax refund —~ (50)
NEFEEFHCGRR), TR (Over)/under-provision in prior years (705) 84
Hity Others (29) 232
ERBIES B Actual tax expense 14,591 18,781
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7 EXEE& 7 Directors’ Remuneration

RIBEBCARUEBIDE 16 1AM ES Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
e - the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
24211 URBAH BGHE  —ZEAE
EZHe ABEYNRE MEEL ERMH 3 ek
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary  Share-based scheme 2009
fee in kind bonus payments contributions Total
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(PaT)
(note)
HTEE Executive Directors
ERBLE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 4,466 1,500 - 12 6,098
REKLE Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,142 250 201 12 1,725
REREE Mr Ng Chi Keung 130 1,093 250 201 12 1,686

BUHHTEE  Independent non-

executive Directors
EERE Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai 160 - - - - 160
BREFLE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
FHRERE Mr Peter Lee Sheung Yam
(f3E () (Note (i) 60 - - - - 60
B Jicn Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
EREEE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 60 - - - - 60

940 6,701 2,000 402 36 10,079




S By
Notes to the Financial Statements
(BB AEFRAIN - LUBEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless-otherwise indicated)

7 EEM&E) 7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)
R 1 DY) BIGHE  —ZEAE
EEne  ABWAE BERL ERHNZE e ik
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary  Share-based scheme 2009
fee in kind bonus payments contributions Total
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(PaE)
(note)
HiTEE Executive Directors
BRAEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 3,649 3,700 - 12 7,481
BRER EAE Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,059 600 74 12 1,865
RERTE Mr Ng Chi Keung 130 1,073 600 74 12 1,889
BUHEHTEE  Independent non-
executive Directors
BEREE Mr Herald Lau Ling Fai 160 - - - - 160
BREEF R4 Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
FHERAE Mr Peter Lee Sheung Yam
(HEE() (Note (i) 140 - - - - 140
2IEEEL Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
960 5,781 4,900 148 36 11,825
sy : ERZEENENAZTN\BEHIE Note (i): Retired on 28 August 2008
MiaE © LARRD AEMH S H 2 EIREARAQ G Note:  Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share
BB AE T IR T E BB (EET options granted to the Directors under the Company’s share
BE - ELBERENBEDIRBH T option scheme. The value of these share options is measured
1(0)(ii) T & 71| 7 2 [ LA B 1 2 L B 1) according to the Group’s accounting policies for share-
YHRZSHETHEE - WiIRIEZ based payment transactions as set out in note 1(o)(ii) and, in
THHER - B2 HEEERZATER accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
W FRESTARELENEFE amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity
ZETHEEEIER R RAE o instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.
BRASLEYN=NTE - BEME The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
FRERENEZIEFNEE - HIRE terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the
Fgma Pl BRETE - paragraph “Share option schemes” in the Directors’ report
2314 © and note 23.
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EEHMeAL

ERfiffessnmALd = (ZTF
NE: =) RESE - BRNMEFITH
AMTEE7 - AWM (ZZETN\EF - W)

8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2008: three) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

ANTHEN€Z%EINT other two (2008: two) individuals are as follows:
—EENEF “EENEF
2009 2008
SE Tt
$000 $'000
Fe hHEME Salaries and other emoluments 1,748 2,037
LARR 12 R B a0 2 A Share-based payments 23 112
RORETEIHE K Retirement scheme contributions 24 24
1,795 2,173

ZRfieEa ATHMESE A TEHE
A

The emoluments of the two individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following bands:

—ZETAEF —EBEENF

2009 2008

AE AE

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

Z75%£1,000,0007T $0 - $1,000,000 2 1
1,000,001 1,500,0007C $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 - 1
2 2

FAFRGEREERT

AARIEERREMGEZANBRE—F
B 5 AR R T B R 2 #91,084,0007T
(ZZZ)\4 : 930,0007T) 518 ©

9 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of $1,084,000 (2008: $930,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.
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9 FLFEBEEERF(E)

NI R NG AR

9 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company (continued)
Reconciliation of the above amount of the Company’s profit
for the year:

—EENF ZTTN\F
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
FTARR R BT Amount of consolidated profit
ERRREEGE RS attributable to equity shareholders
dealt with in the Company’s
financial statements (1,084) (930)
B OB A A= Write back of impairment losses
VERIEEEEN on interest in subsidiaries 29,278 99,490
RARREFEE R Company’s profit for the year
(B E26(0)) (note 26(b)) 28,194 98,560
10 &R 10 Dividends

(a) BRAFERNAAFERRERNIE

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
F5 Fi
$'000 $'000
EEIR & TR E Interim dividend declared and paid
FR%10.010 of 10.0 cents (2008: 19.0 cents)
(ZZFZ)\F : 19.01L) per share 12,549 24,246
REE REEZRDIK Final dividend proposed after the
RNEARR S FR%28.01ll balance sheet date of 28.0 cents
(ZZZ\F : 29.01) (2008: 29.0 cents) per share 35,164 36,861
REEREREZEDIK Special dividend proposed after
FERIR B ER (L the balance sheet date of nil cents
(ZZFZTN\F : 12.00L) (2008: 12.0 cents) per share — 15,253
47,713 76,360

REE BRZZ D KA B R RS

HAEAEE AR RAE -

The special and final dividends proposed after the balance sheet
date have not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet
date.
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10 BB (&)
(b) BR E—MBEFE  YRAFEZER
AN AR B RIS

10 Dividends (continued)

(b) Dividends payable to equity shareholder of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year

—EENE —ETN\F
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
BR E—HIRFE - TR Final dividend in respect of the
REEZERIATH previous financial year, approved
RNHEARR B H%29.01L and paid during the year,
(ZZEZTNFE : 24.010) of 29.0 cents (2008: 24.0 cents)
per share 36,547 30,758
B E—MEREE - WK Special dividend in respect of the
REFZERZTH previous financial year, approved and
FRIR S8 8%12.010 paid during the year of 12.0 cents
ZEZENFE  E) (2008: nil cents) per share 15,123 -
51,670 30,758

REE_TEENF=ZA=+—HILLFE
BAEREAOERRRBREMS - ©
ZEEN\FEREFEZDRENER R
RER B EARFEZE RS ARNEEE Y
A1 3R444,000CH)Z5E : WETEHEER
WEEEREROBEELFEA D
BB RNVEEEHRERDBFER
FEAMRITEBEREMEZENRERE
HHRRE ©

In respect of the special and final dividends for the year ended
31 March 2008, there is a difference of $444,000 between
the special and final dividends disclosed in the 2008 annual
report and amounts approved and paid during the year which
represents dividends attributable to (i) shares repurchased
before the closing date of the register of members and (i) new
shares issued upon the exercise of share options before the
closing date of the register of members.
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11 BEEF 11 Earnings Per Share
(a) ERREARZF (a) Basic earnings per share
BREABNZEBAFENAATE The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
378 IR 25 IR 3R P15 )4 41/80,022,0007T.( = attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of
TZT\4F :101,027,0007T) * AR i2 8 $80,022,000 (2008: $101,027,000) and the weighted average
77 % i A% &9 hn #& F 19 £125,908,000% of 125,908,000 ordinary shares (2008: 127,844,000 shares) in
— T T )\ 4F 1 127,844,0000% ) 5T & 40 issue during the year, calculated as follows:
T
EBARE AT 98K Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
—EEhEF —EENF
2009 2008
B EE Ring B
Number Number
of shares of shares
TR Fa%
‘000 ‘000
RUA—BREETEER Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 127,106 127,522
TEERENTE Effect of share options exercised 94 874
B D HIR 2 Effect of shares repurchased (1,292) (552)
R=A=1+—HmNEER Weighted average number of
I E ordinary shares at 31 March 125,908 127,844

74 KIFEEEERAA
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



11 BERER(E)

(b) BREEEF
BREERFRZBAAR L BRAERS
% B2 15 % F180,022,00070( —ZEE )N\
F :101,027,00070) © ARG E R
hn & 7 Y5 £0126,088,0000%( — B F 1\
£ 1 128,670,0000%) 5t E 0T -

BRI (58

11 Earnings Per Share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $80,022,000 (2008: $101,027,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 126,088,000
shares (2008: 128,670,000 shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

—BEIF —ZTTNF
2009 2008
REE R EH
Number Number
of shares of shares
FK Tz
‘000 ‘000
R=A=+—AWNEER Weighted average number of
INtETF a8 ordinary shares at 31 March 125,908 127,844
WRABBEBEARARE Effect of deemed issue of ordinary
B ERT BT EHER shares under the Company’s share
BITEBARNTE option scheme for nil consideration 180 826
R=A=+—ANEmk Weighted average number of

T8 (HE) ordinary shares at 31 March (diluted) 126,088 128,670
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12 ZEBE|E
DEERBIEAKE O RBNIE D B
fEH 2 - AREB D BER L AKE
AR IFER TIERREK - D&
BBREDFMEENEZREA -

12 Segment Reporting
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because
this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

%%/\4
REBENTEXZE D BB

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:
BEER: NEEEERBMISE - Restaurant operation : The selling of food and beverages in
restaurants.

: The leasing of premises to generate

rental income.

WEHE . HAMERAEEHESWEA -

Property leasing

EEEY NERE 7 IR 8 ey L
Restaurant operation Property leasing Inter-segment elimination Consolidated
“EENE BT\ CEEAf ZTTN\E SEEAE ZETN\F SETAF ZETN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
i Fr r i r Fr r T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
RENREE  Revenue from
BIA external
customers 1,456,683 1,419,791 8,820 13,685 - - 1465503 1433476
REEMAT  Intersegment
HA revenue - - 6,236 6,242 (6,236) (6,242) - -
a5 Total 1,456,683 1,419,791 15,056 19,927 (6,236) (6,242) 1465503 1,433,476
DEMTEEE  Segment result 85,763 93,995 5,767 13,786 91,530 107,781
FOMELUE  Unallocated
RER operating
income and
eXpenses 3,282 13,388
BRI Profit from
operations 94,812 121,169
BHENK Finance costs (199) (1,361)
FisH Income tax (14591)  (18,781)
ERRA Profit for the year 80,022 101,027
FEHE Depreciation for
the year 48542 45,041 782 782
WERX Impairment losses 4,40 3,678 = -
FEBXER  Reversal of
impairment
losses (299) (1,710) - -

7 6 REREER AR
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12 FEBE(E)

12 Segment Reporting (continued)

EBoE(E) Business segments (continued)
B EZEN paniEi GRYE
Restaurant operation Property leasing Inter-segment elimination Consolidated
SETAF ZTRN\F STENF TE\E ZEINE ZZT\E ZETNF _ZT)F
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
r T r T r T r T
$'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
NHEE Segment assets 548359 536,302 57,695 61,622 (10697)  (14744) 595357 583,180
AOLEE Unallocated assets 6,971 42,097
BEEE Total assets 602328 625277
NEEE Segment liabilities 216,547 244709 10,073 15,254 (10,697)  (14,744) 215923 245219
HEEH Interest-bearing
borrowings 6,020 3,350
FORAR Unallocated
liabilities 5,495 6,755
REEE Total liabilities 227,438 255324
EENEEN  Capital
ERR% expenditure
incurred

during the year

60,751 71,927 = -
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12 PEBW/E(E) 12 Segment Reporting (continued)
& 5 3 Geographical segments
EARAEBEEERNEIEMSE M Hong Kong is a major market for the restaurant operation
R EAREEEREEKNTEM business of the Group and the PRC is a major market for
%5 o property leasing business of the Group.
EE2aE s S EER - HEWRAZNR In presenting information on the basis of geographical
BEERFFEMATEREE - DEHEENR segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
BARZANEENEATER location of customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure
% o are based on the geographical location of the assets.
&B HE
(TREES)
Hong Kong The PRC
(other than Hong Kong)
ZBENRE —ETN\E “ZENF “EINF
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fr T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
REMRER Revenue from external
GIEON customers 1,331,873 1,324,264 133,630 109,212
NEEE Segment assets 522,239 522,057 105,615 94,630
FEREE Capital expenditure
MERFAX incurred
during the year 50,906 56,230 9,845 15,697

78 RREEEBRAE]
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13 EESE

13 Fixed Assets

(@) A&E (a) The Group
HELHA HEME
BEY BRIB  HittEE It RENF L]
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets Sub-total  properties Total
Tr T Tr Tr T Tr
$'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
BAHGE Cost or valuation:
RZZEZLFMNA—H At 1 April 2007 92,856 238,226 294,699 625,781 39,322 665,103
i 5 Exchange adjustments 541 1,601 2,082 4,204 - 4,204
g Additions - 27,198 44,729 71,927 - 71,927
HE Disposals - (15,203) (13,130) (28,333) - (28,333)
BB Surplus on revaluation - - - - 6,052 6,052
RZZTNF
=R=+—H At 31 March 2008 93,397 251,822 328,380 673,599 45,374 718,973
K& Representing:
AR Cost 93,397 251,822 328,380 673,599 - 673,599
EE-—TEN\EF Valuation - 2008 - - - - 45374 45374
93,397 251,822 328,380 673,599 45,374 718,973
RIMERAE : Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
RZZZLEMA—H At 1 April 2007 27,616 181,343 178,737 387,696 - 387,696
P AR Exchange adjustments 238 1,076 1,006 2,320 - 2,320
FEFE Charge for the year 2,280 22,423 21,120 45,823 - 45,823
HE R Written back on
disposal - (14,670) (11,116) (25,786) - (25,786)
REBX Impairment losses - 1171 2,507 3,678 - 3,678
REBXED Reversal of impairment
losses - (308) (1,402) (1,710) - (1,710)
RZTEN\F
=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 30,134 191,035 190,852 412,021 - 412,021
BRERE Net book value:
RZZEN\F
ZA=+-H At 31 March 2008 63,263 60,787 137,528 261,578 45,374 306,952
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13 EEEE(ZE) 13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@) KN&EEH (&) (a) The Group (continued)
HELH HENE
BEY YRIE HihEE Nt RENE #e
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets Sub-total  properties Total
Tr T Tr Tr Tr Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT EE Cost or valuation:
RZEENFMNA—H At1 April 2008 93,397 251,822 328,380 673,599 45,374 718,973
B 5 G5 Exchange adjustments 138 461 640 1,239 - 1239
e Additions - 24,470 36,281 60,751 - 60,751
HE Disposals - (32,267) (17,877) (50,144) - (50,144)
B Transfer 2,828 - - 2,828 (2,869) (41)
EfHRH/(BE) Surplus/(deficit) on
revaluation 241 - - 241 (1,370) (1,129)
RZZTNF
—A=1+—H At 31 March 2009 96,604 244,486 347,424 688,514 41,135 729,649
K& Representing:
7N Cost 96,604 244,486 347,424 688,514 - 688,514
fhE-—BBNE Valuation - 2009 - - - - 41,135 41,135
96,604 244,486 347,424 688,514 41,135 729,649
RIMERAE: Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
RZZE)\FNA—H At1 April 2008 30,134 191,035 190,852 412,021 - 412,021
B 5 5% Exchange adjustments 63 280 269 612 - 612
FEHE Charge for the year 2312 23,053 23,959 49,324 - 49,324
HER T Written back on
disposal - (30,056) (13,951) (44,007) - (44,007)
i Transfer @n - - (1) - 41
RBEEX Impairment losses - 680 3,761 4,40 - 4,441
REBXED Reversal of impairment
losses - (297) (2) (299) - (299)
RZZENF
—A=1+—H At 31 March 2009 32,468 184,695 204,888 422,051 - 422,051
IREFE - Net book value:
RZZEENEF
=A=+—-H At 31 March 2009 64,136 59,791 142,536 266,463 41,135 307,598
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13 BERE(E)
(@) ANEE(4E)
AEBEMERALEEBNDITAT

13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(@) The Group (continued)

The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the Group
is as follows:

—EEhE —TTN\F
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
HET REEY(HEERE) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
EEENRAEE Long-term leasehold in Hong Kong 69,478 66,409
FEEBRINFEEE Medium-term leasehold outside
Hong Kong 27,126 26,988
96,604 93,397
REYHE(REE) Investment properties, at valuation
EEEHTHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 8,345 11,215
EEBRINFEEE Medium-term leasehold outside
Hong Kong 32,790 34,159
41,135 45,374

b) AEERMAREVEER-_ZTTNF=

B=+—BEESKRAFELADED
GEERSBEATELARAMENT
HEEEITER - BEGHELEHBA
BT -EETEBREMBRAR®RT
HESsETIABENEMBeERre
B YA HEMENMTLMmEER
BEERBENHELSR AFENEGHB
$81,370,0000c( — T N\F : EEAK
6,052,0007T) EEARA BRm AN ©

HtnBEEBREEM  &RiE - LR 7
B EMESRVIABENIREAR
ZRM0

(b) All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at

31 March 2009 on an open market value basis calculated by
reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential. The valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of property being
valued. The revaluation deficit of $1,370,000 (2008: revaluation
surplus of $6,052,000) for the year has been charged to the
consolidated income statement.

Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial purchases
of cutlery and utensils.
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13 BEREE)

(d) EXAFEAR AEEEREEEET
IEEBFBERE YEETELD
BIEEEMAKNEEE - REGLE

imﬁgiﬁémﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁaaﬁﬁ
4,441,00070( — & & )\ 4 : 3,678,000
REEEREFANEHHET
BENETEE
1@@@%@%9&299,000

_) AN -
MO DEHEAEFEE
—Mﬁl Bl #58 -

JTT(=ZZ )\ : 1,710,0007T) °

ZIK$F“EEWI;E§FE’J/WEE%@%E%
1,968,000

4,142,000 —Z 22 & )\ F:

) -

1 B8 4 f LA SRR

“BENF

EMEE AR -
@)F_ZEA¢EHE+—E

%Eﬁﬁi‘?ﬂﬁ%@soz,ooo% —ZEZ
£ : 59,818,0007T) °

(f) REBENZLE

EXTrBREdAEE -

BRI E10%
10%) FEE M EE A E

ERA%
7 M B R R FTERITEEE RN Y

HEHIREYE - BE
HEVNZRE—F2=F SAKLEH
REBRETA
BENKEHERRREBRNKERSE

13 Fixed Assets (continued)
(d) During the year, the Group’s management identified several

branches which continued to under-perform and estimated
the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets of those branches.
Based on these estimates, the carrying amount of the fixed
assets was written down by $4,441,000 (2008: $3,678,000)
during the year. In addition, the Group’s management re-
estimated the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets of
certain branches which had been impaired in prior years and
wrote back impairment losses of $299,000 (2008: $1,710,000)
during the year. As a result, the net impairment losses on fixed
assets of $4,142,000 (2008: $1,968,000) were recognised
during the year.

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the fixed
assets’ value in use, determined using a discount rate of 10%
(2008: 10%,).

At 31 March 2009, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of
the Group amounting to $43,302,000 (2008: $59,818,000).

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases initially run for one to three years. None of
the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

frargasasin T - leases are receivable as follows:
—EEhE —ET)\F
2009 2008
T I
$000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 6,088 4,075
—FRERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 2,990 3,500
9,078 7,575
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13 BEEE(E)

() BE-_ZTThAEFE=-ZA=Z+—RHIFE"
EEBATHEERENMEYERR
4216 43,169,0007T ) E IR E M HEE A
MELH REEY)  RAKREED WE
TEEMENERER - BAT A%E
B ELEYERIERGHREEL -

HE-_ZETNF=A=+—HILEE"
EEBUTPHHEEREN —EREM(BR
H{E A59,0007T) B A& 1 ih K E2EY)
EBAKREYE  AAEAEEENRE TE
EWMENERAZR - BAT AREE#H
EEYENCERE A - RERE
T REEYEHHEBEC T AEGAK

13 Fixed Assets (continued)

(g) During the year ended 31 March 2009, two properties with
a total carrying value of $3,169,000 held in Hong Kong
under medium-term leases were transferred from investment
properties to leasehold land and buildings because the Group
had changed its intention in respect of the use of these
properties. They are now used for its own fast food operation.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, a carpark with a
carrying value of $59,000 held in Hong Kong under a medium-
term lease was transferred from leasehold land and buildings
to investment property because the Group had changed its
intention in respect of the use of this property. It is now leased
out under an operating lease. Upon the transfer, a revaluation
surplus of $241,000 was credited to the land and buildings

241,0007T ° revaluation reserve.
14 B8 14 Goodwill
—EENEF —EENF
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
A - REOA—B K Cost, at 1 April and

—A=+—H 31 March 1,001 1,001
BeEmENEEEDL B ITHRER R Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing

AEBRKEEMRANER D F o B RE
FTRHHINRESELSETNOT

goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGU") identified according to the area of operation and
business segment as follows:

—EENEF T N\F

2009 2008

5 FiT

$'000 $'000

BEREB—+ Restaurant operation — The PRC 1,001 1,001
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14 8 (E) 14 Goodwill (continued)
BeEHETHRKE S FEIBEES The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-
BENE -AFEHEERRBREEEEZE in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections
WAFMEEENR S REMRT - BB based on financial budgets approved by management covering
T EFEHENRSMER TR =X a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
VEHEE - X ER O HBBXHESELRS extrapolated using the estimate rates stated below. The growth
TR EEBNRATIIIERE - rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the

business in which the CGU operates.

SAEFABENTERE Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:
—EENEF —ETNF
2009 2008
ESVAIES Gross margin 13% 14%
R Growth rate 3% 5%
FrR= Discount rate 10% 10%
EREERBIBNEATSEEETEE Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
EERZE o PAELABINE TR R on past performance and their expectation for market
ITEREMETER — - MATERBRT development. The weighted average growth rates used are
IR R BIE R MR R 9 3045w R R /9 B A consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. The
WIRE o discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating

to the relevant segments.

15 RIBEAFMKRE 15 Investments in Subsidiaries
b NN
The Company

—EENE —EENF

2009 2008

Fr Tt

$'000 $'000

JE TR (R AS) Unlisted shares, at cost 77,941 76,053
FEUH B A B FUE Amounts due from subsidiaries 386,147 412,741
464,088 488,794
B ORERRK Less: Impairment losses (109,771) (139,049)
354,317 349,745
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15 B A TRIIRE
(a) BB ARZIBAEIKE BEZE
BRRFKOMES -

b) RZEEZAF=A=+—HHHELQA
FHIBHIRBHRERFEI12121238

15 Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, recoverable
on demand and interest-free.

(b) Details of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2009 are set out on
pages 121 to 123 of the financial statements.

16 Hth & FIEE 16 Other Financial Assets

—ETNE —TT)N\FE
2009 2008
SEE Tt
$000 $'000

AR EBESABEAN Other financial assets at fair
Hih e REE value through profit or loss — 19,952
LA SR ANt ER E M SR A E  Other financial assets at amortised cost 2,341 19,393
2,341 39,345

Hb e MEERETNEREBHRA
REBUERE  YERBBERIIHE 28
BSITERBRERARR - BHFE
REFWER > W2REFRTARHKS
NEESFBHERFHE - RZFTZTNEF
“AZt - BERENHMEREE - §
BN S RRFHIZFWR - WRRTS
NMERB(BRERBIRITEAERE - M
PE R M EM SRR ) ABERF B EX
RICE

HbeBMEEBR T TIIARLBHEER
WEEEB SN M B BRI HFOR -

Other financial assets represent principal protected structured
notes placed with financial institutions which are subject to call
option at the discretion of the financial institutions before the
maturity dates. Interest is receivable on a quarterly basis and
calculated at fixed or variable interest rates with reference to
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). For other financial
assets held at 31 March 2008, interest is receivable on a quarterly
or annual basis and calculated at fixed or variable rates with
reference to market rate fluctuations, including LIBOR, foreign
currency exchange rate and equity market performance.

Included in other financial assets are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which it relates:

—2BRE —TENF
2009 2008
T T
‘000 ‘000

ETT United States Dollars = 75USD 300 3=7TUSD 5,063
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17 &8 17 Inventories
() BEEABRMTNEFERRE (a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:
rEH
The Group
—EENEF ZEENF
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
B & Food and beverages 23,892 23,138
SHAEMR - BEMBREMIMIE  Consumables, packing materials
and other sundry items 5,340 5,276
29,232 28,414
(b) ERAZTENGFEEES LT ¢ (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:
—EENE ZEENF
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
EEFENREEHE Carrying amount of inventories sold 425,079 412,743
&MUk Write down of inventories 196 750
425,275 413,493
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18 Trade and Other Receivables

XEE LN
The Group The Company
“EENE —TTN\F “ZENE “EEN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
JEUTBR A E b IENR R Trade and other debtors 4,681 5,719 = -
[RANEi R Rental deposits paid 11,137 15,511 - -
REMBHFR Deposits and prepayments 20,541 20,703 207 201
PN B A RIFIE Amounts due from
subsidiaries - - 35,500 88,149
36,359 41,933 35,707 88,350
AREC DT (a) Ageing analysis

A AEE B RO B U R KRN E At B W R B 4R
EUBRR(EMBREER) HRER
BB ERRRER DA T

Included in trade and other debtors are trade debtors (net of
allowance for doubtful debts), based on the invoice date, with
the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

AEH

The Group
—BEhF —EENF
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
1230H 1 to 30 days 1,083 2,817
31£90H 31 to 90 days 31 117
912180H 91 to 180 days - 9
1,114 2,943

AEEHEFTETHHEHERSIETBEUR
SHEE - AEENE TREREEENED
BEENF30HE0BMEEH -

The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash basis.
The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 90 days to certain
customers to which the Group provides catering services.
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18 MEURRSRFNF Mt BN R ()
(b) FEUBRFRE

FE U AR SRR E IR R & IR B A AR KA
%o BEAREBEAULEHEEENAE
MERER - BRBERXESEZKTH
FEWERR(R M) - RBEZFF
NERZZEENF=ZA=+—RHILEF
B AEBEYEFSHBREERNE

RRERK -

(0 FERERELRR

FEMERI 2R & HuAR AR (B /Y FE AR SRR

18 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
is written off against the trade debtor directly (see note 1(j)).
During the years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008, the Group
did not record any material impairment losses in respect of its
trade debtors.

Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually

BT nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:
rEE
The Group
—BEhF ZEENF
2009 2008
T T
$'000 $'000
e EAth 3ERNE Neither past due nor impaired 1,077 2,638
BER LR —1EA Less than 1 month past due 36 179
mE—E=={EA 1 to 3 months past due 1 117
A ==NEA 3 to 6 months past due - 9
37 305
1,114 2,943

JRiE H 3R 1B A FE M AR SR R A 08

BRRCENEREBRER

B 8 BB JERUE Y FE U R R B - = AR
AEBARHEBERN —RBILE
F-E8BERR RENELER AR

EEERYEEE  MABERIDKR
AR R EWE - PTIAEARL I ET RIRE

o AEBYWEELERMIFFE

o

(d) AR FTA B B 2 R IR K

o AERERANSKE LS

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

All amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are
unsecured, recoverable on demand and interest-free.
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19 BeNRLERY

19 Cash and Cash Equivalents

bS] VNG|
The Group The Company

—EEhE —TENE —EThE “EENE

2009 2008 2009 2008

Tr Tr Tr Fr

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

RITER Deposits with banks 110,946 124,018 = -

FOFEHNRS Cash at bank and in hand 70,152 54,034 158 112
BEBERITMIEE Cashand cash
HREEED equivalents

in the balance sheet 181,098 178,052 158 112

BEABRATNRSMASZEYE
ETIARBREERINEEE UGS

Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet are
the following amounts denominated in a currency other than

BB MY EEE the functional currency of the entity to which they relate:
A%H
The Group
—ZEZhEF —EBEENF
2009 2008
Tt I
‘000 ‘000
ETT United States Dollars ZJ0USD 8,098 ZEJTUSD 1,141
20 FE AR SR F0 i FE 3R 20 Trade and Other Payables
piN-3 NG|
The Group The Company
ZEZNF —TENE k-3 3 “TENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
T T T Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Blifs ke Rental deposits received 1,232 2,050 = -
JEMBERMESER  Creditors and accrued
expenses 189,143 217,708 1,320 1,391
FER R A Rl Amounts due to
subsidiaries - - 27,889 27,875
190,375 219,758 29,209 29,266
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20 FEFHARERFNL MBI (Z) 20 Trade and Other Payables (continued)
REEE B ENBRZAEMER REE Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
FERERIN  EIREZEAHETEMNRE D on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of the
GIBCENE balance sheet date:
rEE
The Group
—EEhE ZEENF
2009 2008
Fr T
$:000 $'000
1£230H 1 to 30 days 57,627 63,897
31290H 31 to 90 days 1,741 3,380
912 180H 91 to 180 days 1,089 406
1812365H 181 to 365 days 499 79
—FL b Over one year 472 568
61,428 68,330
KRR BB BB A 7 3R IE S R All amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are unsecured,
0B WAETERERMIEE interest-free and repayable on demand.
21 BITHER 21 Bank Loans
RZZEENF=A=+—8" RTEXK At 31 March 2009, the bank loans were repayable as follows:
EESREIN T
rEE
The Group
—EEhE ZEENF
2009 2008
Fr T
$:000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 350 3,000
—FREMFA After 1 year but within 2 years — 350
MEREBRFA After 2 years but within 5 years 5,670 -
5,670 350
SRITE AR Total bank loans 6,020 3,350
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21 |ITER(E)
RZZBEZENF=ZA=+—RH  RITEXK
EERIERT

21 Bank Loans (continued)

At 31 March 2009, the bank loans were secured as follows:

AEH

The Group
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
T Tt
$'000 $'000

RITER Bank loans

—BHEH — secured 350 3,350
— KR — unsecured 5,670 -
6,020 3,350

RZZBTZAF=ZA=+—0 " LdHH
RITERMBITELIIARNE B F D

YV RN (2BITRE13(e) ©

AEBNBDRITERAFAEEET
ERBOEEABRLTNRNE - 7
WRIEE - WERNTE RN EPBEHERT
MR ERZHET o HAKEERRL
EPANRERARREZRER - AEHE
EEHERALETHXERY -

AEBERREE SRR BEHMH
F27@)i) e RZTFAF=ZA=1—
B HMEEREMCHAEERENE
W—FENF &)

At 31 March 2009, certain of the above bank loans were
secured by charges on certain properties of the Group (note
13(e)).

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance
sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants.

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in 27(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2009, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2008:
none).
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22 g RiRHiaF

AEEZRBE BRI MEAE S EE
BIYE IR E - BREBERBUEFEEGDR
R EFIEATESE
Zl([mEEFE]) - BESFTEIR—E
AEHRFRKFE - ABUMNZTAE
B REBRESHE BEEXEESA
%R {E B FE R A B H5%[A 5T 8B H 4t
FBEEF AMMAEBEA B LR A20,000

BAEERANER -

7T e AR E AR ARTES A &P -

REBEFTEAIMEEERNEES X2

BHERNRBHRE o

23 LERERNLUKMSERNRES

ARAR BT _FAATN\BRAT
—IEBRERE Bt ARREFE
BRERBEFEMNARRLENE AT
MES(BEFNTESRBIUIFNTE
F)SHAEMEB KRR - REA -
RE - BHEA ROIRGHEER B
BAME BEEAMGEBHER
B - URBAQRRD - AERT
BER T ZER e &R - (D
E{E (R ERER TEHE A ERX
P A ¥RERPARA A DU E + Kiii)
BOREXBRERTERAMOEZE
BER e A WERARNRND 19
WiE -BREFEETLNBBNER
REQTRIH  BRETSILEEAR
BRETERPARBNRERR - 546
ANERESEBRERBIRARFERE

P& o

ERARFTN_EELF+_A=HMH
HoESREERTHBRENREE
(BRII7TID)HEER S  EFER_F
ENF+A=+— B L BRRE
WARZEZNFOAN\BRELEEER

BEEMR THERE NBRE -

22

23

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevantincome of $20,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local arrangements.

Equity-settled Share-based Transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
18 September 2002 under which the Directors are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Director) or any
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any consultant,
agent, representative, advisor, supplier of goods or services,
customer, contractor, business ally and joint venture partner to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company at a
price which shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the share; (i) the closing price of the share as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; and (iii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer. Save
as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before an option can be exercised under
the share option scheme. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

In view of the relatively high subscription price ($9.97 per
share) of the share options which the Company had granted
to a number of Directors and employees of the Company on
3 December 2007, the Board cancelled the above-mentioned
share options on 31 October 2008 and re-granted the same
number of share options to these Directors and employees on
8 April 2009.
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23 DESREMNUBHSERMETSH(Z) 23 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(@) N TRESFER FEMEANKEZFIE (@ The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the

B MBERERESBEATE XNRMEE year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
S delivery of shares:
BREHE TR BRESHHR
Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
RTEEHNBRE
Options granted to Directors:
- _ET+F+-A=H 800,000 AIR=ZEENF+_A—HZE 7.09F
—E-mE+—A=+A
B2 501712
—on 3 December 2007 800,000 Exercisable in five batches 7.0 years

during the period from
1 December 2008 to
30 November 2014

BT EEERE

Options granted to employees:

——EE=F"H+H 21,000 AR-ZZEZENF—-—A—HZE 5.94F
—EENF+ZA=+—H
MDA 1718

—on 7 February 2003 21,000 Exercisable in four batches 5.9 years

during the period from
1 January 2004 to
31 December 2008

——_TEMFHAA—H 300,000 AIRZZETRFAA-T=HZE 4.7%F
—EEAFAAZFTZA
BRI D4 1T1E

—on 1 September 2004 300,000 Exercisable in four batches 4.7 years

during the period from
23 September 2005 to
22 September 2009
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23 DESREMNUBHESERNETSH(Z) 23 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(@) L TRESFER FEKEANEZFIE (@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the

o prEEBERELEZEBEE NG year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
g (&) delivery of shares: (continued)
BREHE TR BRESHHR
Number of Contractual
instruments Vesting conditions life of options
—ZZETRFMA=-+HA 360,000 ARZZFZERNFAAATHERE YAK:S
—E-=FAT=H
HM S5 1718
—on 25 April 2005 360,000 Exercisable in five batches 7.1 years
during the period from
14 June 2006 to
13 June 2013
——FTTLF+-H=H 3,300,000 ARZZEZENF+_A—HBE 7.0
—T-NE+—A=1H
B 5 501718
—on 3 December 2007 3,300,000 Exercisable in five batches 7.0 years

during the period from
1 December 2008 to
30 November 2014
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23 LIESRHEMLRNSEROZSH(Z)
(b) BERIERRRE FNEFHITEENT

23 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

options are as follows:

—EENF —ZTENF
2009 2008
IR BB B hniEF fERE
TEE S gE| TE(E A
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
JT TR 7T F %
$ ‘000 $ '000
FHAITE Outstanding at the beginning
of the year 8.96 4,781 2.24 1,994
FREHE T Granted during the year Nil - 9.97 4,190
FAEITHE  Exercised during the year 2.33 (200) 1.91 (1,303)
FARNBKM Lapsed during the year 5.82 (611) 9.07 (100)
FANEFH Cancelled during the year 9.97 (3,870) Nil -
FARAITE Outstanding at the end of
the year 2.33 100 8.96 4,781
FARAIT{E  Exercisable at the end of
the year 2.33 100 2.10 121
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23 LIS RHEMLRNSEROZ R (Z)
(b) FERERBE MINEFHITEENT :

(%)
REZANBITEBRERITE B B NE
FHRRE AE6.957T( —FZ )\F : 10.65
JT) °

R-ZBZAFE=A=+—BRTEBER
R ITEE A2.325T( ZFBF )\ F 1 1
JC ~ 2.3257C ~ 3.5;0H19.977T) + 1M pidE
FHRHE HHR B048F(ZZTZ N
F611F) e

BN AR EBEMRR
BERETRBEERHRBNAAEBER
2EMBETERENAABEE
ETBRENGHAABESKE R
ARG E - WAEEREN S
RAEZELNBAZE - AR
BREENEHRRITENTE -

23 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

options are as follows: (continued)

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was $6.95 (2008:
$10.65).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2009 had exercise price
of $2.325(2008: $1, $2.325, $3.5 and $9.97) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.48 years (2008: 6.11
years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a binomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the binomial lattice model.

BREND ABENRERR —EEN\F
Fair value of share options and assumptions 2008
REtEBNRAREE

Fair value at measurement date $1.48
RAD (B

Share price $9.97
1T(EME

Exercise price $9.97
TRHRK B K

Expected volatility

26.39% -43.10%

FERER (A1 E M — IR A B AR AU A BT 3 A0 pnAE FH HARR )

Option life (expressed as weighted average life used in the

modelling under binomial lattice model)

TRHARR B
Expected dividend yield

EER AR (ASNERE S RIBAER)

Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes)

3.47 years

4.31%

1.16% - 2.94%
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23
(0)

24

LSS EnLRASERNZS (&)
BN DA BEMRERE)

TEHR B R R—AKIRIE 2R B R (CARB AR
MR RIS EIR A ERETE) XA
FRIRIR AT AR E S AR TR IIR K H
R ETAEMB A FLARRSEL - B
HREEEZREELBEG T - TBE
ABRBRNESH R EBREZEMGEAOR
REBE-

BRERERRE-BARBERERT - St E
FERERBER TENAABERIL
B RERGNT - BRENE T AEE
BBV T S IR IR ] o

REARKMTHRFR
BERBRMAOAERERS

23 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued)

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividend yield is based on historical dividends. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.

24 Income Tax in the Balance Sheet
(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

rEH
The Group
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
REEHRBD Provision for Hong Kong
ST Profits Tax for the year 13,423 17,030
EAEHFET Provisional Profits Tax paid (15,641) (13,161)
(2,218) 3,869
A FERAEH Balance of Profits Tax provision
EEERR relating to prior years (7) (294)
(2,225) 3,575
hEIR IR PRC taxation 538 743
FEER—FA Amount of taxation expected
IR I to be settled within one year (1,687) 4,318
(A Representing:
A UG B A HAFR IR Current tax recoverable (2,239) (294)
TS BRI Current tax payable 552 4,612
(1,687) 4,318
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24 BEAREMTHIMBR(E) 24 Income Tax in the Balance Sheet (continued)

(b) BHERBRLEMSHEEMEBRE - (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
EEGEEEBBRERNELEMER The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in
(BE)/ AENHEKID MAFEZE) the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the
W year are as follows:

rEE
The Group
EBEETE
REYEEMR KBENHE B
Depreciation
allowances
Revaluation in excess of
of investment related
properties  depreciation Total
T Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000
KB TS ERRERIE - Deferred tax arising from:
RZEZELFMA—H At 1 April 2007 105 (563) (458)
iEaEmRT Charged to the consolidated
53 income statement 48 1,464 1,512
R-ZTN\F=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 153 901 1,054
RZZEZNEFMA—H At 1 April 2008 153 901 1,054
WixEBERT Charged to the consolidated
1153 income statement - 1,873 1,873
R-TTENF=A=1+—H At 31 March 2009 153 2,774 2,927
rEE
The Group
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
T T
$:000 $'000

FIGAEEABRERNIEL  Net deferred tax assets recognised

IS EEFE on the consolidated balance sheet (35) (25)

Em/\ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ RIERHEIL  Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
SHaBEFs on the consolidated balance sheet 2,962 1,079
2,927 1,054
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24 RERBRRFATHRBR(E)
(0 RERNELEFFSRHEE :

24 Income Tax in the Balance Sheet (continued)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

rEE

The Group
—2BhE —TETNF
2009 2008
Tt Tt
$'000 $'000
AR ERER Deductible temporary differences 2,464 1,927
EErRWE AR A EINEE Accumulated unused tax losses 40,476 39,318
42,940 41,245

ARER B 1 AR ph Ll AT IR H S 1R N TR
BRABMAINREREZERABAE
SR EE  RARAKEEERER
RN _ZETNF=A=1+—H EF#
MR RAER KL BRERM S AR
B Y &5 18 DA 85 R JR B ER B0 71 &Y
ATREMEAR KN  RIBRITHP] - FLATHE
BB RERRE -

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of the above tax losses and deductible temporary differences
of certain subsidiaries as management of the Group considers
that it is not probable as at 31 March 2009 that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not
expire under current tax legislation.

25 ¥R 25 Provisions
REH
The Group
—ZEThEF —TENF
2009 2008
T Tt
$'000 $'000
RHERG %EE Provision for long service payments 12,320 11,530
HEIGT 2 BB AR Provision for reinstatement costs
for rented premises 14,534 13,657
26,854 25,187
B BIEENREEE] Less: Amount included under
TH AR FE “current liabilities” (5,489) (4,691)

21,365 20,496
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25 #fF(2) 25 Provisions (continued)
(a) RHEABRTS & %1 (a) Provision for long service payments
rEE
The Group
—EENE —ETN\F
2009 2008
Fr T
$'000 $'000
REUA—A At 1 April 11,530 9,962
FT{E MY RBSNE M Additional provisions made 1,820 2,037
FTED R e 2 Provision utilised (1,030) (469)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 12,320 11,530
BIEEBEEED NEBENETIE Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
MITITEAEEREZVERFN RSB is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
BEREESN—SBRE - ENSER employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
TZERENZEFCEFEME - I completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
RERERAEBRIKGTEZEMmKE amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
AEBHFMERS - AEBWES Ll and years of service, and is reduced by entitlement accrued
EETEMBREMNEE - under the Group’s retirement schemes that are attributable to

contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside
any assets to fund the above.

(b) HEHZT 2 IB1EK LR (b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises
rER

The Group
—EENF —EENF
2009 2008
Tr T
$'000 $'000
A el = At 1 April 13,657 11,228
FrYEH HYREINER Additional provisions made 1,877 2,986
B EOR Provision utilised (1,000) (557)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 14,534 13,657
BIEEZTITIVHNHEERZDNIER > K Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with landlords,
SEEBEREEEE R ZEMERR TG the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental premises at the
EHES - BEKANHRRERRIE- Group’s cost upon expiry of the rental agreements. Provision
At - NEEDRIBE G E AN EERK is therefore made for the best estimate of the expected

IREEMEHEL T4 - reinstatement costs to be incurred.
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26 FEXIEME

26 Capital and Reserves

(@) A"&EHE (a) The Group
1R
BEY
M R& ROEE HARR E5EG EGRRE ENRE REEN 0 48
Land and
buildings
Share  Share Contributed  Capital revaluation Exchange  Retained
Note  capital premium  suplus reserve  reserve  reseve  profits  Total
fr fr fr T T fr
§/000 §000 §000  $000 §000 §000 §000 §000
R-E5tENA-R At 1 Apri 2007 121522 3212 886 1384 - (1245 208013 333832
LEERRE Dividends approved in respect of
KRS the previous year 10() - - - - - - 0758 (0758)
HETENBLA Exchange differences on translation
HRE of financialstatements of
FEENEL 25 PRC subsidlaries - - - - - 1400 - 1400
FHPE-FHELTE  Release of exchange reserve upon
FRIRE B dissoluton of a PR subsiciary 4 - - - - - 13 - 13
ERaA Profit o the year - - - - - - 0007 101,027
REERETZEARG  Shaesised undershareoption scheme.—~~ 26(0)) 1304 1,185 - - - - - 2489
¥ER lsue expenses - 21) - - - - - (1)
WEREERNRNA Fquity-settled share-based
RIS transactions - 98 - 79 - - - W
EEARFRH Repurchase of own shares
-EREE - par value paid 00 (1720 - - - - - N (W20)
-EfGENCLBR - premium and brokerage expenses paid  26/c)) - (5404 (886) - - - B16) (14458
AEEEER Dividends dedared in respect of the
HRE curtent year 106) - - - - - - (4246 (2446)
RIEENEZA=F-H  At31Mach2008 127,106 - - 1463 - (4484 245868 309,953
RZZEN\ERA-A At 1 Apri 2008 127,106 - - 1463 - (4484 245868 309,953
LEERRE Dividends approved in respect of
MR the previous year 10() - - - - - - (16700 (51670)
HERENELA Exchange differences on translation
B of financial statements of
FEHELZR PRC subsiciaries - - - - - 836 - 836
ERa Profit or the year - - - - - -0 8w
NGIEERES AN Revaluation gain recognised upon
REMZH transfer from property held for
e own use to investment property - - - - 21 - - pIy
REEREZEARG  Sharesissued under share option scheme — 26(ck) 200 265 - - - - - 465
¥ER lsue expenses - @) - - - - - ]
WEREERNRNA Fquity-settled share-based
ERIRS transactions - 187 - 125 - - 49 188
EEARFRH Repurchase of own shares
-EREE - par value paid 600 (1,719 - - - - - - (179
-ERENELER ~premium and brokerage expenses paid -~ 26(C)i) - (219 - - - - (12350 (12,569)
FEERER Dividends dedared in respect of the
MRS curtent year 106) - - - - - - (12549 (12549
RIESAEZA=F-0 M3 March 2009 125,587 225 - 2668 i (3648) 249817  3748%0
101
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26 B (Z) 26 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(b) A7 (b) The Company
lifd Bx ROEE SARH BRREE REEF ot
Share Share Contributed ~ Capital Retained
Note capital premium  surplus  reserve  profits Total

i r i r T I
$'000 $'000 $'000  $'000 $'000 §'000

RZEZ+FEA—H At 1 April 2007 127,522 3,272 65,664 1,384 180,206 378,048
LEERRE Dividends approved in respect of

HIfR 2 the previous year 10(b) - - - - (30,758)  (30,758)
EREN Profit for the year - - - - 98560 98,560
REBRESE Shares issuied under share option

ki scheme 26(0)() 1304 1,185 - - - 2489
¥IER Issue expenses - 1) - - - 1)
INEREERMLRNA  Equity-settled share-based

ERNRSH transactions - 968 - 79 - 1,047
EEAZ R Repurchase of own shares

-BHEE — par value paid 26(c)(i) (1,720) - - - - (1,720)

~BEEMCLER - premium and brokerage

expenses paid 26(c)(i) - (5,404) (9,054) - - (14,458)

AEREEE Dividends declared i respect of the

TS current year 10(a) - - - - (24,246)  (24,246)
RZZZN\F=A=F—H At31 March 2008 127,106 - 56,610 1463 223762 408,941
RZEENEFEA—H At 1 April 2008 127,106 - 56,610 1463 223,762 408,941
FEEENE Dividends approved in respect of

(IR & the previous year 10(b) - - - - (51,670)  (51,670)
FERF Profit for the year - - - - 28194 28,19
RERRES2 Shares issued under share option

Rt scheme 26(c)(i) 200 265 - - - 465
FIER Issue expenses - ®) - - - 8)
INESEENLRNE  Equity-settled share-based

ERNRS transactions - 187 - 1205 4% 1888
EEAR SRR Repurchase of own shares

-EffEE — par value paid 26(c)(ii) (1,719) - - - - (1,719

—~BEffREFCLER - premium and brokerage

expenses paid 26(c)(ii) - (219)  (12,350) - - (12,569)

rEERE Dividends declared in respect of the

RIS current year 10(a) - - - - (12,549)  (12,549)
WZEENE=A=+—H At31 March 2009 125,587 225 44,260 2,668 188233 360,973
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26 EEMEEMHZ)

26 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(SI:- %N (c) Share capital
ZEENF —TENE
2009 2008
ROEE EEc) BinEE Ees
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
T Tr Tk T
‘000 $'000 '000 $'000
EERA - Authorised:
FREEITEAR Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
E#TRARRA : Issued and fully paid:
RIMA—H At 1 April 127,106 127,106 127,522 127,522
BEERETE Shares issued under share
BRI (FIEEG)  option scheme (Note (i)) 200 200 1,304 1,304
(51 % Ak £ (B (i) Shares repurchased (Note (ii)) (1,719) (1,719) (1,720) (1,720)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 125,587 125,587 127,106 127,106
F3E Notes:

() RIZEEARES BT

AEEANBREREARBEAQG L BR
4 #£200,0008% ( == F \4F : 1,304,000
f%) - B3 A465,0007T( — B E )\ F
2,489,0007T ) + HE #1200,000L( ZE =
J\EF : 1,304,0007T) "R ABEAER - TR T
#9265,0007C( === /\4 : 1,185,0007T)
AlEE A P& {7 % (B8R » 187,000C( = F
JUEE £ 968,0007T ) B4R 55 MY 5E1(0)(ii) AT
PR R E AR AR R ERR -

U]

Share issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for
200,000 (2008: 1,304,000) ordinary shares in the Company
at a consideration of $465,000 (2008: $2,489,000), of which
$200,000 (2008: $1,304,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of $265,000 (2008: $1,185,000) was credited to the
share premium account. $187,000 (2008: $968,000) has been
transferred from the capital reserve to the share premium account
in accordance with policy set out in note 1(o)(ii).
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26 BEMER(E) 26 Capital and Reserves (continued)
() BEAR(E) (c) Share capital (continued)
M&E « (&) Notes: (continued)
(i) ARSI (i) Purchase of own shares
REE-ZZNF=-A=+—HLEFE During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company repurchased
RATEBRFTEB AR S RMHAT its own shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

BB R4 BB BB

=& A 5 HE BSE BIEE PS4 E
Number Highest price Lowest price
Date of of shares paid per paid per  Aggregate
repurchase repurchased share share price paid
JT JT Fr
$ $ $'000
“EEA\FRA=Z+=H 22 May2008 82,500 8.78 8.76 724
ZEENFRAZFNH 26 May 2008 200,000 8.72 8.72 1,744
ZEENFRAZFTEH 27 May 2008 299,500 8.72 8.72 2,612
ZEENFRAZF/AH 28 May 2008 249,500 8.72 8.72 2,176
—EEN\FHRA=1H 30 May 2008 350,000 8.72 8.70 3,051
b A WEVANE 8 September 2008 300,000 7.60 7.60 2,280
—ET)N\FNANE 9 September 2008 57,500 7.50 7.45 430
ZZZE)\FNA+—H 11 September 2008 50,000 7.25 7.25 363
ZZE)\FNA+EH 17 September 2008 60,000 6.70 6.70 402
ZZZE)\FNA+N\H 18 September 2008 70,000 6.25 6.25 437
1,719,000 14,219
BN LI EEFERIWTE - B AR The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the issued
AIBE BITIRAEAEER EZ S ERGD share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
RIEE ° BLEBERD FT SRS ERLELL of these shares. The premium and brokerage expenses paid on the
BREEARNRRAEENRER R - repurchase of the shares were charged to the Company’s and the

Group'’s reserves.
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26 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(c) Share capital (continued)

MI&E « (&) Notes: (continued)
(ili) MEEE B BARE MM EARTTERBERREIE (iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at balance sheet
= date
BFEH TREHE TEE —EBEBNF —EEN\F
Exercise
Date granted Exercise period price 2009 2008
7T 2R 2R
$ Number Number
—TE=F_A+H —ETMF—-A—RAE=TTN\F+-A=1+—H
7 February 2003 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2008 1.000 - 5,000
—TT=F_A+H —ETRF-RA—RAEZTTN\FF+-A=1+—H
7 February 2003 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2008 1.000 - 5,500
—TE=F_A+H —EEAF-A-REZTTN\FF+A=+—H
7 February 2003 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2008 1.000 - 4,500
—TE=F_A+H —ET+HF-A-RAEZTTN\FF+-A=1+—H
7 February 2003 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2008 1.000 - 6,000
ZEEMFENA—H —ERtFAAZ+=REEENFAA=T=H
1 September 2004 23 September 2007 to 22 September 2008 2.325 - 100,000
ZEEMFENA—H —EE\FAAZ+=REETAFNA=T=H
1 September 2004 23 September 2008 to 22 September 2009 2.325 100,000 200,000
ZEERFNAZTRA —EE\FAATNAE=Z——F~A+=H
25 April 2005 14 June 2008 to 13 June 2011 3.500 - 120,000
ZEERFNAZTRA —EENFANATNAE=ZE—=—F~A+=H
25 April 2005 14 June 2009 to 13 June 2012 3.500 - 120,000
ZEERFNAZTRA —E-EFEXATNAE=Z—=F~A1+=H
25 April 2005 14 June 2010 to 13 June 2013 3.500 - 120,000
e = T N\F+A-HE-Z-HWF+—A=+AH
3 December 2007 1 December 2008 to 30 November 2014 9.970 - 820,000
e = —EThF+=A-HE-F-HWF+—A=+AH
3 December 2007 1 December 2009 to 30 November 2014 9.970 - 820,000
e = T+ A-HE-T-HmF+—A=+AH
3 December 2007 1 December 2010 to 30 November 2014 9.970 - 820,000
e = T+ A-HE-F-HWF+—A=+AH
3 December 2007 1 December 2011 to 30 November 2014 9.970 - 820,000
—EEHET A=A - CZHF+-A-HEZF-MF+—A=+H
3 December 2007 1 December 2012 to 30 November 2014 9.970 - 820,000
100,000 4,781,000

SNBERREE TERFAATRBIRAR
R EEB VR - ARG LB AERE —
FERBPNIEIHRRMTE23

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note
23 to the financial statements.
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26 BEMER(E)
d) FEENEEMAR
() R E
R R BERAEA R AR RINAR]
EREMAIEI50R BIS7TIEM B FiE
—HAN—FRBLERFTRE °

(ii) [ESGHE
P AR R E R BB R
RFTEENPMAINEEZR - ARRIR
B 1) M & R BUR R FE 3
feéfhs

(iii) FAAEER
RE-NNNFN—REH  NEEH
REZERARERAARRNMEA
A - RRRIFEBAMBARNAHE
EFEREAANRAE BT EER
BHECINARRRNHARE - A&
B A B BRI ATE R A B B AR AR
B R At B AR R B AN R AR IR
SESABITRMD A EEMSER

ARRHHABHRIBERE- NN\~
HREPEARFRE - REARE—
NN\—FRBPER) » ARRHEA
BHRABADIK °

T - ETSIERT - RATTEEL
BABRBERRIEEBERIELH
I -

(@) PAFRIREBASGEE 2 H
MBIE %

(b) REENAEREERAMPORE
BEREDHITRAMERM®E
BRAVARAN ©

26 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s Bye-Laws and
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of PRC operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former holding
company of the Group became a subsidiary of the Company.
The excess of the consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company over the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company has been credited to the
Company’s contributed surplus. The Group’s contributed
surplus represents the excess of the aggregate of the
nominal value of the share capital and share premium of
the former holding company over the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company under the reorganisation.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus
account of the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

RREEEHRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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26 EEMEER(Z)

d) REEHMER®RE)

(iv) EA G
BARGEEBIERIE M1 0))FTE A

BfH BERE SO EERE - B2
T K2 FIME B BRI B Sl
RITEE A (B -

() 1 REEDEIE I E
T R EMNEL R EREREE
BROMEEAREYERETER
FRELMES

Lo
RZZEENF=ZRA=+—8" A/#t
DEFARNGERRENFEERRE
# 232,493,000t( —Z T T N\ F:
280,372,0007T) - EENEHE AEE
FOIRK R EZR28.0M(=ZFE
)\¢ R EARZ B &A% 29.011L K 45 Bl A%
S &%12.01L) - & #£35,164,0007T
(_;;/\E 52,114,0007T) ° &Lk
BEREERAMARERAALE -

(vi)

(e) EAXEIE

AEEEREANETEZEENSHEERLR
BIREMEED  EBRBERTERNER
BRARRBAKFERASGEKNARGRE
BB R IR R o

RZEENF=ZA=+—H ' xEH
A@{ﬁﬁkimzoooo;ﬁ(_?g}\ﬁ
3,350,0007T ) ° —EENF=ZA=
+ S :éfstt??(ﬁﬂzrx%@%wﬁﬁk
BRANBEOLE)R1.6% (ZFZN
E 09%)c RZZEZNF=A=+—
B AEBNEBEEE - THEANK
044580 A 3£183,439,000( ZEE N
£ :217,397,0007T) °

26 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv) Capital reserve

v)

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 1(0)(ii).

Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises the
change arising on the revaluation of property held for own
use upon transfer to investment property.

(vi) Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2009, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $232,493,000 (2008: $280,372,000). After
the balance sheet date the Directors proposed a final
dividend of 28.0 cents per share (2008: final dividend of
29.0 cents per share and special dividend of 12.0 cents per
share) amounting to $35,164,000 (2008: $52,114,000).
These dividends have not been recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date.

(e) Capital management
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 March 2009, the Group has total borrowings amounting to
$6,020,000 (2008: $3,350,000). The gearing ratio, representing
the ratio of total borrowings to the total share capital and reserves
of the Group was 1.6% at 31 March 2009 (2008: 0.9%). The Group
had structured notes, time deposits and cash balances as at 31
March 2009 amounting to $183,439,000 (2008: $217,397,000).
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26 EEMEEMZ)
() BAREIE(4E)

26 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(e) Capital management (continued)

AEEES LT B MEEELE AR
B NEARRSERL KA KN
mﬁﬁi@#&ﬁﬂ%ﬁ;éﬁﬂkﬁﬂ’]@ﬂﬁﬂﬁ

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings

B2 MG - I E R R A &R and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
ﬂ%ﬁ$’7’ﬂﬁ{’ﬁﬂj FHEE o position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light

27 BERRER

(a) EIEMIRER
AEESELEXHBRTHREES
MBES  MENEERR KNEEE
FRTATBEERBRMEEME - &
BRI B INARR B -

() 1ZEER
AREE S E E g T 22k 8 EUARR
FEM KGR - |RITHERREFRIRT
MRE -

FLEBUSRFAE MR S - AN
B A A EMBUR - EE%Z—‘%@FTE
Eﬁ?%%%ﬂﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ’éﬁkﬂﬁﬁ% °
EEPREMES - NEBRTRIE
Fﬁﬂ:ﬁw\ REER - EERRILE
HREREAREHRBER -

REENBBRERE - EHREFHRMEA
TEBREFREEARIFNSE
Wi -

REEMAZNEERR CRABEE
BEXRTEASREENRESHE -
BRPEE29FT AR R BIFABD ) F B 2 F)
EVIRTTHE R (5 SR B HERIAS
NG I AR A ] A AR B AR
SEEAZEERR -

27

of changes in economic conditions.

Financial Risk Management

Management of financial risk

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks
are limited by the Group’s financial management policies and
practices described below.

(i) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, bank deposits and cash at bank.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that catering services are
provided to customers with an appropriate credit history.
Sales to retail customers are made in cash, Octopus or via
major credit cards. At the balance sheet date, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk.

The Group's structured notes, time deposits and cash
balances are normally placed with financial institutions of
high credit quality.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.
Except for the financial guarantee given by the Company in
respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 29, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit
risk.

1 08 REEEBRAT
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27 BERBER(EZ)
(a) B IEARE(E)
(i) "EBELER

REBENBER R E ME SR MIE
HWRBE TR - UERERTHODN
Reffl INTBSRBERGE
W AEGRIEERRE - PR B MR

TRFAVARERARRNERAE
RAEE B RBROTE R - %F
TRAEBRNEATAREAE(E
FERARIE MR o (B 7 B RN EE
B H) & B A RS E AR S ) A
SEMARAAKE XN A B
W -

27 Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Management of financial risk (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and
the Company’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required

to pay:
FEE
The Group
=
2009
EHLER

FRAE BEE #2FE
RESHE TERE 15/ DR2FE DHSE
More than  More than
Total 1 year 2 years
contractual but less but less
Carrying undiscounted Within than than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years
Tr Fr Fr Tr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RITEK Bank loans 6,020 (6,579) (577) (226) (5,776)
B ELLE  Rental deposits received 1,907 (1,907) (1,232) (260) (415)

FERTBR KA Creditors and
FEETEHR accrued expenses 189,143 (189,143)  (189,143) - -
197,070 (197,629) (190,952) (486) (6,191)
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27 BERBER(Z) 27 Financial Risk Management (continued)
(@) BEHBRRR(E) (a) Management of financial risk (continued)
(i) REEE () (ii) Liquidity risk (continued)
REE
The Group
—ETN\F
2008
BRI LR
TRES w1 FE w2 E
RHEH MEBE 157/ DR DS
More than More than
Total 1 year 2 years
contractual but less but less
Carrying  undiscounted Within than than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years
T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
RITER Bank loans 3,350 (3,409) (3,058) (351) -
B LLE  Rental deposits received 3,388 (3,3898) (2,050) (980) (358)
JE BRFRAN Creditors and
fEEtE A accrued expenses 217,708 (217,708)  (217,708) - -
224,446 (224,505) (222,816) (1,331) (358)

1 10 KIFEEEERAA
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27 BERBER(EZ)
(a) B IEAE(E)
(i) RBEER ()

27 Financial Risk Management (continued)
(a) Management of financial risk (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk (continued)

¥ NN
The Company
—EEhE
2009
BHRER
FIRIRE
FREEE e 1%
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
T Tt Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000
JETBRF BT E B Creditors and accrued
expenses 1,320 (1,320) (1,320)
FERTHE A B3k IE Amount due to subsidiaries 27,839 (27,889) (27,889)
29,209 (29,209) (29,209)
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27 BERBER(Z)
() BRISRAMR(E)
(i) HBEER ()

27 Financial Risk Management (continued)
(a) Management of financial risk (continued)

(if) Ligquidity risk (continued)

PN
The Company
—EENF
2008
BHLER
i
RESF mMELATE 1A
Total
contractual
Carrying  undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
FT Tt Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000
FEEBRF ST E Creditors and accrued
expenses 1,391 (1,391) (1,391)
FERTHE & R FIE Amount due to subsidiaries 27,875 (27,875) (27,875)
29,266 (29,266) (29,266)

(iii) F K [E (iii) Interest rate risk

AREEHF R EREZIRAEBER
1% - EEMFRAE BAER o

“EENFE=ZA=+—8  HTEHN
KRR EFTER50EE - I LEATE
Hih S HRFBIE - KEBBRIER
FHE B s 48 hn#915,00070( =
T\ : 7,0007T) °

BE _E BRI DT B RER A KR
BERAMNE  YRERESHTA
A% B PR 1 B0 ) 2R LB A © 50
B LT TRAREEEHNEH
HREEE MEFEEE R LFZEH
SR REEENNE - ZNTRE—-F
TNFERR—EEETT

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from structured
notes, time deposits and floating rate borrowings.

At 31 March 2009, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s profit after tax by approximately $15,000 (2008:
$7,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to the exposure
to interest rate risk for financial instruments in existence at
that date. The 50 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2008.

1 12 KIFEEEERAA
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27 BMBRRER (&)
(@) BEMBRER(E)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

EEmE
AEEREE R AN EERBRIR
B AR TTRHEM BB ER R LIRITF
R (2HME16519) - AR ETHE
AR - REBFEHET BB
RBERTGHRERES -

AnEE

BRTAeBTIAN  FIESRTAN
RHSEHRAR_ZSTNFR=ZZZ
NEZA=+—HHRAABERET
K

27 Financial Risk Management (continued)
(a) Management of financial risk (continued)
(iv) Currency risk

v)

The Group's exposure to currency risk at the balance
sheet date arose from structured notes and cash at banks
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD") (see notes
16 and 19). As USD is pegged to HKD, the Group does
not expect any significant movements in the USD/HKD
exchange rate.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values at 31 March 2009
and 2008 except as follows:

rEE
The Group
—EENE “ZENF
2009 2008
FESHE DAREE RETHE RAEE
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
T Fr Tt T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BB ANETER  Other financial assets
HphEmEE at amortised cost 2,341 2,016 19,393 19,501

& M5 K B AP B8 X B R IR 15 S S 4K
- R RATERERMRIE,E
B RELIRFSIN BEZEFTRE
ENAABETESSE -

DA EER G
BRUEREN AR BEREBMEER
A (WREREFBEL - RBRFPIET
RA R B R EATE (B AR L) 1 #E
flat o

BERRSRETIRITER - RER
RENGERREEEENRER
At MATERAMITR X SREN SR
TARGEHNTISEBNE - B4
AEMEEEAR - gNEEBRH
MSHRBUIRREE -

Amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable/repayable on demand. Given
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their fair
values.

(vi) Estimation of fair values

The fair values of structured notes are estimated by valuation
techniques such as discount cash flow method, risk neutral
methodology and option and swap pricing model.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management's best estimates
and the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date. Where other pricing
models are used, inputs are based on market related data
at the balance sheet date.
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27 BERBER(Z)
(b) £m T E8KER

27 Financial Risk Management (continued)
(b) Categories of financial instruments

REE AR
The Group The Company
“ETAE O —TT)N\F ZETNE —TITN\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
Fr FIT Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
tREE Financial assets
AR EE AIBEEH  Other financial assets at fair value
Hip & REE through profit or loss - 19,952 - -
B E R Loans and receivables
—JEUBRSN - #%B& K% - Debtors, deposits and
ENEN prepayments 75,101 71,194 207 201
— JEW BB A RIFR0E — Amount due from subsidiaries = - 383,533 437,885
— AR ARARS — Other financial assets at
Hih S REE amortised cost 2,341 19,393 — -
—REMAEEEY - Cash and cash equivalents 181,098 178,052 158 112
258,540 268,639 383,898 438,198
258,540 288,591 383,898 438,198
SRas Financial liabilities
RBER AR Amortised cost
-BliEeke — Rental deposits received 1,907 3,388 = -
—RERERAK — Creditors and accrued
fEstE A expenses 189,143 217,708 1,320 1,391
—ERHIBARFIE - Amounts due to subsidiaries = - 27,889 27,875
—RITER - Bank loans 6,020 3,350 — -
197,070 224,446 29,209 29,266

1 14 KIFEEEERAA
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RZZEZAF=ZA=1t—HRERNMX
REMBHHRERANRBEFHNE AN

(@ 7

28 Commitments

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2009 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

T
KEH

The Group
—EEhE —ZEENF
2009 2008
SEE Tt
$'000 $'000
SEES) Contracted for 29,560 48
EREERETH Authorised but not contracted for 99,270 2,373
128,830 2,421

RZEZNEF=A=+—HBRENHNE
AFEFEBIET —%116,611,0007CFE
RERBRILEZHHOPRBDINIAR O
IARIRR 2 MR IE - ELE RS E R
REREBEHEBFIER o

o R-FEZAF=ZA=+—H" ' &
SERKCERBENENERAREMNM
XARTE I ¥R NI A b AR &
£12,487,00070( —ZZFZF )\ 4 : 573,000

Included in capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2009
is an amount of $116,611,000 to be invested in setting up a
new central food processing plant to replace the existing one in
operation to cope with the Group’s long term business growth.

In addition, the Group had outstanding other commitments of
$12,487,000 at 31 March 2009 (2008: $573,000) in respect of
the contracting fee for operation of a fast food restaurant not
provided for in the financial statements.

JT) °
by RAZZETAF=A=+—H " BEFESTT (b) At 31 March 2009, the total future minimum lease payments
GRS EHEFEREEMNNREYE under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
HERTREAET are payable as follows:
rEE
The Group
—EEBNF —EENF
2009 2008
FTr T
$'000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 172,706 166,014
—FRERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 219,653 195,584
AFi& After 5 years 30,064 23,325
422,423 384,923
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28
(b)

29

30

&iE(E)

(%)

AEBENGEEHERAIL D ME - B
HE—RVTAB—FE2NLF XEE
BREEDHAKESR BERMEK
XY EFET  HENFBERETE
EE - ARMMESEEE - 52K
BEEZIYTEIO% (ZEE)\F : 9%E
20% ) BREAHENEEERETE - BT
BEELEMERA -
AEBESHABLBEYWE - N_TZT
NEZA=+—8  RETITRERND
AEREHEREJRERNKES A
FRIE 48 %8 A5,765,000C( — T T )\ F ¢
4,271,0007T) ©

BBEAR

RZZEZENF=ZA=+—RH ARAEA
HETE2ENBARESNRBERK
HARITHAEEMRRITELER -

REER  EFAR/BREBEERTHEAR
AIMRENATRETIK REER -
RABRBZERAEBENTANER
RAAMBARCRINEBRAEER
36,149,0007T( —ZZZ J\4F : 31,919,000
L) BERREREERBEERER -

7R A ) 3 4 A A% U R T AR A AT AR R
A BRAREAARBEELARSEH
& MERBRHER -
EXHABAXS

RAHBEEH MBS HBBEOR DR
G851 - REBEST T T E AR
%5

EMMIEE7ATREE - BREBABN#HE
RENARREFTNFTE - WS REE
RN B TR JA (2 BIMIEES(D))

28
(b)

29

30

Commitments (continued)

(continued)

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased to reflect
market rentals. The contingent rent payments are determined
based on 9% to 20% (2008: 9% to 20%) of the turnover over
the base rents and are excluded from the information disclosed
above.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be
received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March 2009 are
$5,765,000 (2008: $4,271,000).

Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2009, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the balance sheet date, the Directors do not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under the guarantee arrangement. The maximum liability of
the Company at the balance sheet date under the guarantee is
the amount of the facilities drawn down by all the subsidiaries
that are covered by the guarantee, being $36,149,000 (2008:
$31,919,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably
measured and there is no transaction price.

Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions:

Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid to the
Company'’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total remuneration
is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).
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(b)

31

32

EXABRAEER(Z)

EARFEEAN AR —KWBR R
HHA—IEYE - FEMPengtoz B E
=  MPengtofll A —TB AR T
EERBERZERNETERES © It

Gh . BEBEEBHENES - FRE
RS X A1,247,000( ZEF N
£ :1,247,0007T) °

EAFEERN FIRERAERTARF—XK
MEBARAE  WEAHEUREEN
—FETYE - FRASANTIEE A
180,00070( — == /)\4F : 180,0007T) ©

EAFER ARa—KHEBR A M
Front Landf8 A — I8 ¥ % ° Front Land
MR ERHEEABERBLERER
RALT - BABEEARERGLENE
e FNFTELENES B A1,966,000
TT(ZFEZ\F : 1,966,0007T) ©

i d o3 E =
HE_ZZN\F=ZA=1+—HIFEHN
EEEBRRERSFBRAEABEEXRNED
FIEFEFREEEBRAMEEE(EAN
WIEE) AREREEMIIRA o &
BETHIDI3R 5 = RE S A Ut [ BR 15 L
RSHME o

- Hgrhgikd]

BIEE14 ~ 23502785 B @R g BB E
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(b)

31

32

Material Related Party Transactions (continued)

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a property
from New Champion. New Champion is wholly beneficially
owned by Pengto, a company beneficially owned by a trust
of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object.
In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a director of New
Champion. Rental expenses incurred during the year amounted
to $1,247,000 (2008: $1,247,000).

During the year, New Champion agreed to grant a licence to a
subsidiary of the Company to use a storeroom in Hong Kong.
Licence fee paid during the year amounted to $180,000 (2008:
$180,000).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a property
from Front Land. The ultimate beneficial owners of Front Land
are Mr Lo Hoi Chun, who is a cousin of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
Yeung, and his associate. Rental expenses incurred during the
year amounted to $1,966,000 (2008: $1,966,000).

Comparative Figures

Advertising expenses and coupon expenses for the year ended
31 March 2008 have been re-classified from cost of sales to
selling expenses and turnover (as deductions) respectively
to conform with the current year's presentation. The revised
presentation reflects better the nature of these transactions.

Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Notes 14, 23 and 27 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment, fair value
of share options granted and financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of fixed assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to assess whether there is any indication
that a fixed asset may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the fixed asset is estimated.
Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revisions to
the conclusion of whether an indication of impairment exists
and revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which would
affect profit or loss in future years.
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32 Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)

(b)

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Group reviews
the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on
the Group’s historical experience with similar assets. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
material changes from previous estimates.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 13(b), the investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional valuers after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates including
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition and expected future market rents. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market condition.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are transactions during the ordinary course of
business, for which calculation of the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the year in
which such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the management’s
expectation of future taxable profit that will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.
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(e)

33

Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)
Provision for long service payments

As explained in note 25(a), the Group makes provision for long
service payments in accordance with the requirement of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has based
the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and adopted
certain assumptions in assessing the provision for long service
payments. It is possible that these assumptions adopted by
the Group in assessing the provision for long service payments
may not be indicative of the future situation. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future
years.

Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises

As explained in note 25(b), the Group makes provision for
reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the expected
costs to be incurred upon expiry of respective rental agreements,
which are subject to uncertainty and might differ from the
actual costs incurred. Any increase or decrease in the provision
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and
Interpretations Issued But Not Yet effective for the
Year Ended 31 March 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2009 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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33 Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and
Interpretations Issued But Not Yet effective for the

Year Ended 31 March 2009 (continued)

In addition, the following developments are expected to result
in new or amended disclosures in the financial statements,

including restatement of comparative amounts in the first

period of adoption:

EUT B
HZEFIRH
SHHBER
Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

(BA(ERMBRERE
ZEE)RE)E 137
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

(BB B HEREA)L85:
HKFRS 8

(BB HREERDE25USE]
Amendments to HKFRS 2
(BB ERDE 1R

(g&1&3])
Revised HKAS 1

CEBEEER]DFE239R
(84E5T)
Revised HKAS 23

ol
Customer loyalty programmes

[ nae]

Operating segments

[LARR D A AR
— B IR RaEiE
Share-based payment — Vesting
conditions and cancellations

[ B 75 TR 2R A9 513K |
Presentation of financial statements
[EERA ]

Borrowing costs

—EZEN\F+tHA—H
1 July 2008

—TTNF—A—H
1 January 2009

—EENF—A—H

1 January 2009

—ZEThF-A—H
1 January 2009
“TTNF—A—H

1 January 2009

RREEEBRAE]
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TENBAR
Principal Subsidiaries
(LABEE3IR)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AL
ARER RUREE S BRfT/EMEREE ADAIAFBROZEIN TBER
Place of incorporation/
establishment and Particulars of issued/  Percentage of shares
Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activity
E# i
directly indirectly
BEERARAF B8 WREREEIT - 100%  WERE
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ABBRAT i REREET - 100% HENRE
Big Keen Limited Hong Kong 1 shares of $1 each Motor vehicle holding
Cision Development Limited BB AREREEIT - 100% @ EEE
Cision Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a restaurant
ARE (M) BRERAF BE 1,000,000 SR EE 1T - 68%  BTEH
Fairwood (Guangzhou) Development Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of §1 each To be dissolved
ARECRINERBBR AT Bk 10,000 B KR EET - 100%  REER
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Development Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of $1 each Investment holding
Fairwood B V. Limited* RBEARMS/EE  579437REREB0 ET 100% - REER
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited* The British Virgin Islands/ 579,437 shares of US$0.01 each Investment holding
Hong Kong
ARERE(ER)BRAT BB WRERAEEIT - 100%  HARENER
Fairwood Fast Food (Management) Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Restaurant licences holding
ARERERBR AR BB 0B BREREE TR - 100% @ EEEEREE
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong 579 B7REL FEELER R Operation of a chain of fast
BRAEBI0T food restaurants
10 ordinary shares of $10 each
and 579,437 non-voting
deferred shares of $10 each
ARERERRAT BB 350,000 SR E{E107T - 100% @ EEER
Fairwood Investments Limited Hong Kong 350,000 shares of $10 each Dormant
Fairwood Trademark B.V.. Limited* RBSARKS/BE \REBRAEEIET - 100% AR
Fairwood Trademark B.V.. Limited* The British Virgin Islands/ 1 share of US$1 each Trademark holding
Hong Kong
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FEME Q]
Principal Subsidiaries
(AE®EZIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SRR,
ARER RUREE BRT/AMERHE AAFAMEROZEIL TEER
Place of incorporation/
establishment and Particulars of issued/  Percentage of shares
Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activity
E# i
directly indirectly
SEERARLA B AWREREEIT - 100%  ERERE
Finemax Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a fast food
restaurant
MEERERAT BB QREREET - 100%  WIERE
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
VEERBBRAT &2 WREHREEIT - 100% @ WERE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ALERBERDA BB QREREEIT - 100%  WIERE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
REERARAT &2 WREHREEIT - 100%  WERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
EERBRRBRAA BB QREREET - 100% HEREREE
Professional Institutional Catering Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of canteens
and a restaurant
ERERERAA B QREREEIT - 100%  MERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
FBRERARLA BB WEREE T - 100%  WERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
RIKREREBRAA] i 2,600,000%7T - 100% @ EEEHRERE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Limited * The PRC US$2,600,000 Operation of a chain of
fast food restaurants
ERERARAT BB WREREEIT - 100%  WERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ERERERAT BB JREREEIT 100% - EERREN
Starwide Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Management of food counters
AAEERARAT BB WREREEIT - 100%  WERE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
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ML/

ARER RUREE S BRfT/EMEREE ADAIAFBROZEIN TBER
Place of incorporation/
establishment and Particulars of issued/  Percentage of shares
Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company  Principal activity
E# i

directly indirectly
RELRERAA B8 WEREET - 100%  WERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
TEERERAH BB QREREET - 100% @ EEXH
Thousand Island Food Plaza Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Dormant
FERRERAA Bk WEREE T - 100%  WERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BHEERERLA BB QREREEIT - 100% @ WERE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
EHERERAA Bk WEREE T - 100%  WERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment

(AR BN IFHESR S EBAER)

(@ RZZETZNF=A=1+—H " FHES
BRI AN NI b

£HAER A bHEEY
EEBENE% (—FF

(ZBENF 1 6%) °

mEXBRR

N\ 5%) %T%

(b) BHERAEELFDBITEEBRAR

(* Companies not audited by KPMG)

(a) At 31 March 2009, the financial statements of the subsidiaries
not audited by KPMG reflect total turnover and total net assets
constituting approximately 8% (2008: 5%) and 7% (2008:

6%) respectively of the related consolidated totals.

(b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.
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REEEBBHE
Five Year Group Financial Summary
(AE®EZIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BZE=A=1+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March

—EENE ZETN\F ZTEHF —TTREFE —TTRHF
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Fr i T T FIt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
4 Results:
S Turnover 1,465,503 1,433,476 1,204,863 986,700 838,880
Sl Profit from operations 94,812 121,169 95,818 73,998 38,683
=Y ®N Finance costs (199) (1,361) (2,829) (721) (600)
BREE AT @ A Profit before taxation 94,613 119,808 92,989 73,277 38,083
FTiSHt Income tax (14,591) (18,781) (8,320) 1,806 617)
RANRRERBR Profit attributable to
JEAE 4 A equity shareholders
of the Company 80,022 101,027 84,669 75,083 37,466
EEREE: Assets and liabilities:
BEE&E Fixed assets 307,598 306,952 277,407 245,234 226,976
EE & EH Prepayment for
SEUNE fixed assets 3,683 - - - -
EES Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 (1,048)
EEeLe Rental deposits paid 38,742 29,261 31,897 22,619 -
EemEE Other financial assets 2,341 39,345 40,439 - -
PSR B = Deferred tax asset 35 25 488 3,326 210
REEE Current assets 248,928 248,693 226,546 190,964 154,678
BEHAE Total assets 602,328 625,277 577,778 463,144 380,816
mEAaE Current liabilities (196,766) (232,061) (218,468) (147,167) (128,448)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities (30,672) (23,263) (25,478) (26,836) (10,722)
EEFRE Net assets 374,890 369,953 333,832 289,141 241,646
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RIZEERNF=ZA=1+—H AEEH
B €% $£22,619,0007T ~ &5 AT
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R B BBEFENEHRBIBAM
BRI AT

Notes:

()

@)

(€)

Rental deposits paid of $22,619,000, provision for reinstatement
costs for rented premises of $7,803,000, provision for long
service payments of $9,382,000 and rental deposits received of
$3,301,000 as at 31 March 2006 have been re-classified from
current assets/liabilities to non-current assets/liabilities to conform
with the presentation adopted for the year ended 31 March 2007.
The revised presentation reflects better the nature and the terms
of the balances.

However, it is not practicable to reclassify the balances of earlier
years for comparison purposes.

In 2006, the Group adopted a number of new and revised HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA as part of its ongoing programme to align
HKFRSs with International Accounting Standards. Under the
transitional arrangements, a number of the new standards were
adopted prospectively, such as HKAS 32, Financial Instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 39, Financial Instrument: Recognition and
Measurement and HKFRS 2, Share-based Payment were adopted
retrospectively. In the above analysis, the figures for 2005 have
only been restated to the extent that the new accounting policies
were adopted retrospectively.

Coupon expenses for the year ended 31 March 2008 have been
re-classified from cost of sales to turnover (as deductions) to
conform with the presentation adopted for the year ended 31
March 2009. The revised presentation reflects better the nature of
these transactions.

However, it is not practicable to reclassify the balances of earlier
years for comparison purposes.
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REBFI R B2

Investment Properties held by the Group
“EThF=RA=+—H

as at 31 March 2009

1 B BEEAR HEH

Location Existing use Term of lease

REIRYIT

ZEME

&% ra

EREFEM B

2810352 10405% 48 [k h

Shop Unit Nos. 1035 — 1040 Shops Medium-term
on Level 2,

Lowu Commercial Plaza,
Guangchang South Road,
Luohu District,

Shenzhen,
PRC
R
S
=+ EE62E 7058
EXANE
AFE1AEAT A2 B A K

3BA3 N P138E ALK EAL
M4 L5 L6-L11-L12-L13~

L14% L3158 5 8RB BA KRB 8

Units AT and A2 on Warehouses and Medium-term
14th Floor of Block A, and car parking

Private Car Parking Space Nos. A3 and P13 and spaces

Lorry Parking Space Nos. L4, L5, L6,
L11,L12,L13, L14 and L31 on

3rd Floor,

Po Yip Building,

Nos. 62-70 Texaco Road,

Tsuen Wan,

New Territories
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o JEHhE
Store Address

REREIE

FAIRWOOD FAST FOOD RESTAURANTS

5B
Hong Kong

bk
Address

THIR T EJEIRA1A-435REIEBIRISM T
4-95R 4

PRI T EP188E BB DL
112 36 5E4H

FEROKEEATI3-103 BB ENEM T

PIREFRKNBH3IS-A8HEFAE2FE

RIREFANETI6SRENEH2TE

2035548

BEE AR B TR BN EH
AKEREJEHOK 53

S EERBI6SURR S BP0 TBE
N it NA24E

SEERE 125 ERRITH L
I~ G355 4

BT ER T 381385 BN A=
17D

SR8 128- 150552 KB
11EALE

BT 2R B R 1835548 FA L
218201-206=

ISR -SRI SR E X E I E

Shop Nos. 4-9, G/F, Smithfield Court,
41A-43 Smithfield, Kennedy Town

Shop No. 36 on First Floor, Hong Kong Plaza,
No. 188 Connaught Road West

G/F, New Victory House, Nos. 93-103,
Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan

2/F, Manning House, 38-48 Queen’s Road Central,
Central

Shop 203, 2/F, Welland Plaza, Welland Building,
368 Queen’s Road Central, Central

Concession HOK 53, In-Town Check-In Hall,
MTR Hong Kong Station, 1 Harbour View Road

Shop B, G/F and Shop A2 & A3, Upper G/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt road,
Admiralty

Shop No. G3, G/F., Bank of America Tower,
12 Harcourt Road, Admiralty

Shop D1, 1/F, China Overseas Building,
138 Lockhart Road, Wanchai

Portion A, 1/F, Ming Fung Building,
128-150 Wanchai Road, Wanchai

Shops 201-206, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Basement of Causeway Bay Commercial
Building, Nos. 1-5 Sugar Street, Causeway Bay

BE

Phone no.

2856 8688

2856 4452

2856 8650

2856 8661

2856 8640

2856 8662

2856 8665

2856 4451

2856 8651

2856 8659

2856 8663

2856 4458




2 JE ik
Store Address

BB @)
Hong Kong (Continued)
h ik ET]
Address Phone no.
SRREIE19- 23 BAE Shop No. 1 on G/F and the whole 1/F, 2856 8682
N —SRAE & 14 Professional Building, 19-23 Tung Lo Wan Road
BEILERE 14855 N 1554 Shop No. 1 on the Ground Floor of No. 148 2856 8679
Electric Road at No. 148 Electric Road
1t BB E R EKiosk 6 Kiosk 6, Basement Floor, Island Place, North Point 2856 4457
R 15 E S (L) 218 Shops Nos. $32-S36, 2/F, Kornhill Plaza (North), 2856 8689
$32-S365% 5 1 Kornhill Road
PR RN L H255 M T~ Shop Nos. D 23-26, G/F, No. 25 Tai On Street, 2856 8669
D 23-265k 4 Lei King Wan, Sai Wan Ho
L E B 25% 8RN BI5 EE M/F, Galaxy Plaza, 2 Mong Lung Street, Shaukeiwan 2856 8611
GHE GRS —E 104554 Shop No. 104, 1/F., Hing Tung Shopping Centre, 2856 4453
Shaukeiwan
BB HEBEISE2015%4 Shop 201, Tin Wan Shopping Centre, 2856 8645
Tin Wan Estate, Aberdeen
BAEFHOZHH T8, 20-24 %264 Shops 18, 20 to 24 and 26 on the Ground 2856 4461
Floor of Site 2, Aberdeen Centre
BEF M BB (= B35 550 4 Shop 5, Multi-storey Carpark, Ap Lei Chau Estate, 2856 8623
Ap Lei Chau
SERMEE E M RES5E501, Shop Nos. 501, 532-533 and 535-538, 5/F, 2856 8683
532-533 8, 535-5385 &4 Chi Fu Landmark, Pokfulam
Lo B QR RE RS 1181135k 40 Shop No. 113, Level 1, Hing Wah Shopping Centre, 2856 8687

Hing Wah Estate, Chai Wan
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BE

Kowloon

HhHE
Address

RYPIHTEEEE7S - NEARE15E -
WEBRBR KELG/F

A asE v —SRE i L BE A
TR FE i B R ZE R JEKOW 57

T @ 8P — 9k [E 5 i T 482 G002-03

Af ATt 40 &35 5 = [8303-30550 4

i AIEEE3-5 R A E —1EAH

X EERBERES _BF255%H

AL SR EEAST K AN R B

1[E2-A5%48

+ & B m s sD-FaR R EE R 15
N 250 4

+IVEE331-36 157 (EE SIS S/

I 255 K2 25-2655 4

REE6815% B 5 E 535

BB RBE 185 TEA DI

RKE BB YR BRBRES 1 9T

BN E TN EE 038
312-3135%48

Lower Ground Floor, Yue Hwa International Building,
No. 1 Kowloon Park Drive, No. 7 Ashley Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui

Concession KOW 57, In-Town Check-In Hall,
MTR Kowloon Station, 1 Austin Road West

Shop Nos. G002-03 and Open Seating Area,
Ground Level at Elements, 1 Austin Road Wst

Shops 303-305, Level 3, Grand Century Place,
Mongkok

Portion A of 1/F, Hung Wai Building,
3-5 Fa Yuen Street, Mongkok

Shop No. F25, 2/F, Oi Man Shopping Centre,
Oi Man Estate, Homantin

Shops 2-4 Lower G/F, Ka Hing Lau, Ka Wai Chuen,
48 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hung Hom

Shop 2, G/F, 5D-F Ma Hang Chung Road,
To Kwa Wan

Shop2 and Shop 25-26, G/F., Chong Chien Court,
No. 331-361 To Kwa Wan Road

Shop 3, G/F, Trade Square, 681 Cheung
Sha Wan Road

G/F, Precious Industrial Centre,
No. 18 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan

Shop 1, Hoi Lai Shopping Centre, Hoi Lai Estate,
Sham Shui Po

Shop 312-313, 3/F, Dragon Centre,
37K Yen Chow Street, Sham Shui Po

EF

Phone no.

2856 8628

2856 8646

2856 4460

2856 8655

2856 8657

2856 8695

2856 8633

2856 8621

2856 8678

2856 8615

2856 8691

2856 8685

2856 8637
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2 JE ik
Store Address

NEE#)

Kowloon (continued)

it
Address

FOKE R B = S 1B
B a5 —12125B-12755 48

ARRE TS 42 FE T~ 9-135%
SERBEMTEERLE E

HENERWESE R O3E31 75

FALF A BEM e 154

NEEE RN BI0BRIEE B RS

1HE1085F 4

HEEAETTRAREIEE =&

F210-212%%48

B RYI51-635 XA EI N 25k 4

BUERIRE6SREVEES 1B 11658

HIEESH A5 E 1 ER-89 4

EMESERIESESFE5E 158N
32 % 335848

4B PR 1820655 4

Shop Nos. 125B-127, First Floor, Fu Cheong
Shopping Centre, Sham Mong Road,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon

Shops 9-13, G/F, Block 42, Shek Kip Mei Estate

Level 2, Wang Fai Centre, Wang Tau Hom Estate,
Lok Fu

Shop 317, Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre,
Tsz Wan Shan

Shop 1, Market Block, Ping Shek Estate, Choi Hung

Unit 108, 1/F, Commercial & Garage Block
of Richland Garden, 80 Wang Kwong Road,
Kowloon Bay

Shops F210-212, Podium One, Phase lll,
Amoy Plaza, 77 Ngau Tau Kok Road

Shops 2, G/F, Mido Mansion,
51-63 Yue Man Square, Kwun Tong

Shop 116, 1/F, Kwun Tong Plaza,
68 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong

Shop B8, Basement 1, Commercial Complex,
Laguna City, Kwun Tong

Shops 32 & 33, Unit 1 on Level 1 (site 1) 36
of Commercial Development, Sceneway Garden,

8 Sceneway Road, Lam Tin

Shop No. 206, 2/F., Lei Yue Mun Plaza

&5

Phone no.

2856 8638

2856 8607

2856 8627

2350 4863

2323 8123

2856 8629

2856 8670

2856 8605

2856 8694

2856 8632

2856 8690

2856 8671
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Address
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Shop 102, G/F, Po Lam Shopping Centre,
Po Lam Estate, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 8, Block 2 & Shop 9, Block 3, G/F,
Verbena Heights, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 126-127, 1/F, The Lane, 15 Pui Shing Road,
Hang Hau, Tseung Kwan O

Shop Nos. 204 & 207A, Level 2, Metro City Phase |,
Tseung Kwan O

Shop No. R02 on Second Level of the Commercial
Development of Metro Town, Tseung Kwan O

Shop 3, Commercial Block 1, Kwong Yuen Estate,
Shatin

B35, Stationer Restaurant, Tai Wai Railway Station,
Shatin

Shop 32, Level 3, Shatin Plaza, Shatin

Shop 104-107 & 122-124, G/F,
Ngan Shing Commercial Centre, Shatin

Shop Nos. 5-8 on Level 2 of Sunshine Bazaar,
Ma On Shan

Shop No. 364A, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza,
Ma On Shan

Shop 5, Wan Tau Tong Shopping Centre,
Wan Tau Tong Estate, Tai Po

Shop 202, 2/F. Fu Shin Shopping Centre,
Fu Shin Estate, Tai Po

Shop 114, G/F, Wah Ming Shopping Centre,
Wah Ming Estate, Fanling

EF

Phone no.

2856 8610

2856 8643

2856 8667

2856 8692

2856 8696

2856 8613

2856 8622

2856 8641

2856 8647

2856 8664

2856 8634

2856 8624

2856 8699

2856 8617
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Store Address
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New Territories (Continued)
2.5 o B
Address Phone no.
1) SE B AR A m AT 855 Shop G23, Regentville Phase I, 8 Wo Mun Street, 2856 8653
HEH —HIG235% 4 Luen Wo Hui, Fanling
#5852 EHLEE — [ 86-88, Shop Nos. 51B, 52C, 86-88 on Level 2, 2856 8666
51B, 52C5E#H Fanling Town Centre, Fanling
KK IR A O1-65F 4L Tin Ping Cooked Food Centre, Stall Nos. 1-6, 2856 8608
Tin Ping Estate, Sheung Shui
KRR R %525-285 5 Shop Nos. 25 to 28, Podium Floor, 2856 8697
Choi Yuen Shopping Centre, Choi Yuen Estate,
Sheung Shui
EKEAERE BRI 3955k _EIKE IS IUE Shop Nos. 405-6, Level 4, Landmark North, 2856 8639
405-655% & No. 39 Lung Sum Avenue, Shek Wu Hui,
Sheung Shui
EREFHRRZESM T —/E1185% Shop LG118, Cheung Hang Shopping Centre, 2856 8616
Cheung Hang Estate, Tsing Yi
BRI EE —RREEEE 2 Shop No.101 on 1/F, Greenfield Garden, 2856 8684
10155448 Commercial Centre at Phase 2,

No.1 Fung Shue Wo Road, Tsing Yi

LRLIERPRIERE S T 255 Shop No.2, On Yam Shopping Centre, 24815017
On Yam Estate, Kwai Chung
REREOMERE1TE Shops 209-211, Fu Pik House, Tai Wo Hau Estate, 2856 8620
209-2 115574/ Tsuen Wan
EFEFEGESL, 181-1825:48 Shop Nos. 181-182, Level 1, Metroplaza, 2856 4456
Kwai Fong, Kwai Chung
HESLBE2105FEP L Portion of 2/F, Fou Wah Centre, 2856 8614
2FHE25R 4 210 Castle Peak Road, Tsuen Wan
REBRLEHeSHE WM L —H Shop 3A1,3/F., City Landmark I, 2856 8626
31E3A15RES 68 Chung On Street, Tsuen Wan
TR SRS IE213F Shop 213, Leung King Shopping Centre, 2856 8612
Leung King Estate, Tuen Mun
PR A TR A P35 1065k T Shop 106, Commercial Centre, Kin Sang Estate, 2856 8618
Tuen Mun
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New Territories (Continued)

31k B
Address Phone no.
P & 24T E M S 69-7455 48 Shops 69-74, Chi Lok Fa Yuen, Tuen Mun 2856 8625
P IR B 50 IR BB 35 CX3-550% Shops CX3-5, Siu Lun Court Shopping Centre, 2856 8631
Siu Lun Court, Tuen Mun
WP ILE333R =B EREESH T Shops 118-119, G/F, Hanford Plaza, 2856 8635
118-1195%48 333 Castle Peak Road, Tuen Mun
PRI &S 5 — B 1574838, 5B, 6-9, Shop Nos. 3B, 5B, 6-9, 16-17A on 1/F, 2856 8668
16-17A%H Tuen Mun Town Plaza Phase ll, Tuen Mun
W PTH228168-23658 /G iB76555 4 Shop No. 65, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, 2856 8686
Tuen Mun
P E HIPE B R5 181085k & Shop No. 108, First Floor, Po Tin Shopping 2856 4454
Centre, Tuen Mun
TRIKBEGEBRNE T R—& G/F & 1/F, Winland Building, 2856 8609
Shui Che Kwun Street, Yuen Long
JURARAR EB 35 105-1075% 48 Shops 105-107, Long Ping Commercial Centre, 2856 8630
Long Ping Estate, Yuen Long
TLRARKEF LTI %5 Shop A168, Kingswood Richly Plaza, Tin Shui Wai, 2856 8636
1 NA16857 4 Yuen Long
KIKE R EFE12-185% 52 5055 BB 55 — B Shop Nos. G83, G83A, G88 & G88A on 2856 8693
G83, G83A, G838 GR8ALH G/F of Phase 1, Kingswood Ginza,
12-18 Tin Yan Road, Tin Shui Wai
FKBE XK Imm & T 2A% Shop No. 2A, Ground Floor, Tin Shui 2856 4455
Shopping Centre, Tin Shui Wai
TLRA B B 18-245% TBAR E P L1 FIE 1/F, Yuen Long Commercial Centre, 2856 8649
18-24 Kau Yuk Road, Yuen Long
JRUER | 1) B9 0P8 22 SR B 1 S B 2 R L PR 355 Shop No. 18, Podium First Floor, 2856 4459
[BRE Ly | & —18185048 Caribbean Bazaar, Caribbean Coast,
Tung Chung, Lantau Island
KU LSS HBE 1 SR B B B R 5 Unit No. 77090, Departures Check-in Hall, 2856 8698
FIENEREBETT090 Passenger Terminal Building, Hong Kong
International Airport, No. 1 Cheong Hong Road,
Lantau Island
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Store Address

H
The PRC
AYmEBEMEENERNESEH T Ground Floor, Datan Edifice, Heping Road, 755-2556 8140
Luohu District, Shenzhen
IR 289 [ 5 R B 72 Shop Nos. 1028-1034, on Level 2, 755-8232 6136
P ¥k 28 1028-103455 Lowu Commercial Plaza, Guangchang South
Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen
Y TR RFIREIBERE Left Wing, Lobby, G/F, Wanchai Pop Harbour, ~ 755-8230 8080
BRI EBARELA Hongji Mansion, Dongmen Zhong Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen
RYTH 2R N E L KRB AR KR E M/F, District A, Railway Station Building, 755-8233 9123
Luohu District, Shenzhen
rYITieHREEEE N EE R A North Wing, Ground Floor, Junyue Court, 755-8304 3383
9 Yannan Road, Futian District,
Shenzhen
BN M A B R E B KB Shop No. GA-23, Ground Floor, 20-6130 0267
Lobby of Railway Station of East Guangzhou,
Guangzhou
BEMNm# R EER133REEERE Shop 0304B, Basement 1, Hengbao Plaza, 20-8124 2908
B —[Z0304B 133 Baohua Road, Liwan District, Guangzhou
BN TS & AR L 7S E8 23455 Basement 1, Xin Du Hui, 234 Zhong 20-8130 7658
mHeas—E Shan Liu Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou
BN IR EFR 15 EMNE)NE 25 Shop 1WS059, Basement 1, Guangzhou 20-8333 8821
&% 8 — B 1WS0595% i 4 Dongman Xincheng Plaza, 1 Jixiang Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou
BEMmEEE A RIL829-8315% Shop 048, Basement 1, and Shop 106A, 20-8890 0918
BHE106A + B —[E0485%5H Ground Floor, 829-831 Renmin North Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou
BN 7 & R BB 3 258-2625% Shop No. BO1, First Floor, 258-262 Enning Road, 20-8194 7072
EEBO1SE AR Liwan District, Guangzhou
M T RO [ ARFN R B 12155 Basement 1, 121 Linhe East Road, 20-3824 0122
B—E#n Tianhe District, Guangzhou
BRILTT I R B B 335 B e B s — 12 Shop Nos. 237-243, 245-247, 2D11, 757-8321 3260
237-243, 245-247, 2D 1158 4/ First Floor, Baihua Plaza, 33 Zumiao Road,

Chancheng District, Foshan
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The PRC (Continued)
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Address
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Fp B4k 7T P I [ P B K AR A 6F-02 5% R 4

Shop 2G001, First Floor, Tianyou Cheng,
63 Ronggui Guizhou Road Central,
Shunde District, Foshan

G/F, 4th Mansion, 48A Zhichun Road
Haidian District, Beijing

Shop 6F-02, Joy City, Xidang, Xicheng District,
Beijing

B

Phone no.

757-28819352

10-5873 1592

10-5971 6101
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Store Address

FORALRK

BOILING TEA

ek &5

Address Phone no.

PR IR 168-2365% /886455 &4 Shop No. 64, Ocean Walk, 168-236 Wu Chui Road, 2856 8676
Tuen Mun

EREFERE

BUDDIES CAFE

bk EE

Address Phone no.

W EIRI 3528 = FE125% &8 Shop 12, Block 3, Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre 2856 8673

Kwong Yuen Estate, Shatin

R X ith

BUDDIES CAFE

it Ed

Address Phone no.

NI RS R A i Mg 1F 8 Shop Nos. 29 and 30 on Podium First Floor 2856 8652
—1#29-305% 48 of Caribbean Bazaar, Caribbean Coast,

Tung Chung, Lantau Island

—BERAEARE

THE LEAF RESTAURANT

b E5F

Address Phone no.

I RUBR LB 1SRRI ES (L) Shop Nos. $37-538, 2/F, Kornhill Plaza (North), 2856 8648
21€537-S385% 4 1 Kornhill Road, Quarry Bay
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